

CHILDREN'S TRUST REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES

September 25, 2023 at 4:30 PM

CTAC, 802 NW 5th Ave, Gainesville, FL 32601

Call to Order

Vice Chair Pinkoson called the meeting to order at 4:30 PM.

Roll Call

PRESENT

Vice Chair Lee Pinkoson Treasurer Ken Cornell Member Shane Andrew Member Mary Chance Member Judge Denise R. Ferrero Member Nancy Hardt – attended virtually (Non-Voting) Member Maggie Labarta Member Cheryl Twombly – attended virtually (Voting)

ABSENT

Chair Tina Certain

Motion made by Member Cornell, Seconded by Member Ferrero to allow Member Twombly the right to vote due to an extraordinary circumstance. A physical quorum of six members voted on this motion.

Motion was unanimously approved by voice vote.

Agenda Review, Revision, and Approval

Motion to approve the agenda made by Member Labarta, Seconded by Member Andrew.

Motion was unanimously approved by voice vote.

Consent Agenda

- 1. Board Attendance YTD
- 2. 9.13.23 First TRIM Hearing Minutes
- 3. 8.14.23 Board Meeting Evaluation Survey Results

General Public Comments

Chair's Report

Executive Director's Report

ED Kiner requested the Board's approval to execute a contract for sale of the property at 4010 NW 25th Place, Gainesville, FL 32606.

Motion to give the Executive Director authority to sign and execute an agreement for a capital purchase of the property at 4010 NW 25th Place, Gainesville, FL 32606 made by Member Labarta, Seconded by Member Cornell.

Motion was unanimously approved by voice vote.

Presentations

4. Healthy Start of North Central Florida, Inc. Data Review and Update on NewboRN Home Visiting Program (NHVP) and Maternal Family Partner (Mia Jones)

Julie Moderie, Director of Healthy Start of North Central Florida, presented information on their two Trust-funded programs. She provided an overview on the purpose and benefits of an evidence-based home visiting program, she reported on the community outreach efforts through several education programs and resources, and she shared a variety of participation and performance measures. Three of the program nurses also shared descriptions of personal interactions that resulted in better outcomes for Alachua County newborns, mothers, and their families.

Motion to approve funding for NewboRN Home Visiting Program and Maternal Family Partner for one year starting October 1, 2023 to September 30, 2024 made by Member Cornell, Seconded by Member Labarta.

Motion was unanimously approved by voice vote.

General Public Comments

Board Member Comments

Next Meeting Date

Regular Board Meeting - Monday, October 9th, 2023 @ 4:00 PM Children's Trust of Alachua County, 802 NW 5th Ave, Gainesville, FL 32601

Adjournment

Vice Chair Pinkoson recessed the meeting at 5:01 PM.

Vice Chair Pinkoson reconvened the meeting at 5:10 PM.

Vice Chair Pinkoson adjourned the meeting at 5:56 PM.

CONTRACT TO PURCHASE REAL PROPERTY

THIS CONTRACT TO PURCHASE REAL PROPERTY (this "Contract") is made and entered into by and between Davis Monk & Company, a Florida general partnership with its principal address of 4010 NW 25th Place, Gainesville, Florida 32606 ("Seller"), and the Children's Trust of Alachua County, an independent taxing district of the State of Florida, by and through its governing body, whose address is 802 NW 5th Ave, Ste 100, Gainesville, FL 32601 ("CTAC"). Collectively, the Seller and the CTAC shall be referred to herein as the "Parties."

$\underline{WITNESSETH}$

WHEREAS, Seller owns that certain real property bearing Alachua County Parcel Identification No. 06107-005-000 that is more particularly described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto (the "Property"); and

WHEREAS, CTAC desires to purchase the Property from the Seller, contingent upon the provisions provided herein; and

WHEREAS, the Seller desires to sell the Property to the CTAC as provided herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and promises contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of is hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows:

1. **EFFECTIVE DATE; RECITALS.** This Contract shall become effective as of the day and year upon which Seller and the CTAC have all executed this Contract as set forth on the signature page hereof (the "**Effective Date**"). The above-referenced recitals are true and correct and the same are hereby incorporated into this Contract for all purposes.

2. **DEFINITIONS.** The capitalized terms below shall have the following meanings herein:

Closing shall mean the date of the closing of this transaction for the Property.

Escrow Agent and *Closing Agent* shall mean David Menet, of Salter Feiber, Attorneys at Law located at 3940 NW 16th Blvd, Bldg. B. Gainesville, FL 32605, email: <u>davidm@salterlaw.net</u>. It will not be necessary for the Escrow Agent to execute this

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 1 of 31



Contract or any amendments to this Contract. By delivery to and acceptance by the Escrow Agent of a fully executed copy of this Contract along with the Deposit, the Escrow Agent agrees to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Contract specifically relating to the Deposit. However, no amendments to this Contract will adversely affect or impair the rights or duties, or increase the liability of, the Escrow Agent hereunder without the Escrow Agent's prior written approval.

Title Commitment shall mean the written commitment of a Florida-licensed title insurance company to insure and provide title insurance policies to the CTAC. The Escrow Agent shall ensure the CTAC is the named insured for the Property. The Escrow Agent will obtain the necessary title assurances and policy.

Surveyed Acres shall mean the total number of acres of the Property excluding: (1) public rights of way; (2) railroad rights of way; (3) cemeteries; (4) lands under control or possession of anyone other than the Seller; and/or (5) lands below the ordinary high water line or mean high water line of any river, lake or stream, if any.

Survey shall mean an ATLA survey of the Property made by a Florida licensed surveyor who the CTAC shall select from its list of approved surveyors. In addition to the ATLA survey requirements, the surveyor shall: (1) certify the Survey to the CTAC, the Seller, the Closing Agent, and the Florida licensed title insurance company issuing the Title Commitment; (2) meet the requirements of Chapter 472, Florida Statutes; (3) provide a "metes and bounds" legal description of the Property; and (4) list the exact number of Surveyed Acres to the hundredth decimal place or as reasonably practical.

Environmental Reports shall mean any and all environmental site assessments, audits, reports, and/or correspondence relating to any potential environmental matters on any portion of the Property.

3. PURCHASE OF PROPERTY.

a. <u>The Property</u>. Seller represents and warrants to the CTAC that it holds fee simple title to that certain real property located at 4010 NW 25th Place, Gainesville, Alachua County, Florida, bearing Alachua County Property Appraiser's parcel ID#: 06107-005-000, more particularly described in **Exhibit "A"** attached hereto and expressly made a part of this Contract; together with all buildings and improvements thereon, and

Page 2 of 31



including all fixtures and articles of personal property attached to or appurtenant to or used in connection with the Property, together with all rights, benefits, privileges, easements, hereditaments, rights-of-way and other appurtenances thereon or in any way appertaining thereto, including all mineral rights, development rights, air and water rights, riparian and littoral rights, permits, licenses or approvals associated with the real property (collectively, hereinafter referred to as the "**Property**").

b. Intangible Personal Property. To the extent assignable without cost to Seller, all intangible personal property, if any, owned by Seller and related to the Property, shall be assigned by Seller to the CTAC at Closing, including, without limitation: all warranties to which the Seller may have rights appliable to the Property or any portion thereof provided by any manufacturers, designers, and contractors providing materials or performing work on, for, or of the Property, or any portion thereof; and plans and specifications and other architectural and engineering drawings; surveys, engineering reports and other technical information relating to the Property; and any governmental permits, approvals, and licenses (including pending applications, if any)(collectively, the "Intangible Personal Property"). As used in this Contract, the Property, and the Intangible Personal Property together shall be referred to herein collectively as the "Property".

4. **PURCHASE PRICE; DISBURSEMENT.** Seller agrees to sell and the CTAC agrees to purchase the Property for the sum of One Million Nine Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$1,950,000.00); subject to adjustments, credits, and prorations as set forth herein (the "**Purchase Price**").

a. Within 5 business days of the Effective Date of this Contract, CTC will make a deposit with the Escrow Agent the sum of \$50,000, as good faith deposit for the Property (the **"Deposit"**). Upon the expiration of the Inspection Period (as defined below), the Deposit shall be (i) deemed non-refundable except in the event of an uncured Seller default of failure of a condition precedent to Closing, and (ii) applicable to and credited against the Purchase Price at the Closing, or paid to Seller as liquidated damages as hereinafter provided, all as more fully set forth within this Contract.

b. The balance of the Purchase Price, less any fee, and the Deposit by CTAC prior to closing shall be paid by CTAC at Closing.

5. **DOCUMENTS AND INFORMATION SELLER SHALL PROVIDE**. The Seller shall furnish to the CTAC, within five (5) business days of the Effective Date of this

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 3 of 31



Contract, the following documents and information relating to the Property, to the extent such items are in the possession or control of Seller:

a. Copies of all title insurance policies, commitments, abstracts, opinions, searches and/or reports for any portion of the Property.

- b. Copies of all Environmental Reports.
- c. Copies of all surveys of any portion of the Property.
- d. Copies of all engineering reports which relate to the Property.

e. Copies of all leases, contracts, options, easements, licenses, mortgages, financing statements, security agreements, judgments, liens, claims of lien, tax assessment records, and all similar documents, known to the Seller, which are then in effect and may reasonably affect the title to the Property or the Seller's ability to convey fee simple title to the Property.

f. A completed Beneficial Interest and Disclosure Affidavit for the Seller as required by §§ 286.23(1), and 380.08(2), Florida Statutes, the form of which is attached hereto as **Exhibit "B"**. Pursuant to §286.23(2), Florida Statutes, the disclosure must be made under oath, subject to the penalties prescribed for perjury.

g. The Seller's social security or Federal Tax ID number.

h. The above-requested documents in (a)-(d) above are collectively, the "Seller Inspection Materials". Notwithstanding the foregoing, the term "Seller Inspection Materials" shall not include any materials that are subject to attorney-client privilege or that constitute attorney work product. During the term of this Contract, to the extent Seller comes into possession of any new Seller Inspection Materials or any Seller Inspection Materials not previously provided to the CTAC, Seller shall promptly notify the CTAC of the same and deliver such Seller Inspection Materials to the CTAC. The CTAC shall be permitted, at the CTAC's cost, to make copies of the Seller Inspection Materials, to the extent Seller is unable to transmit to the CTAC electronic copies of any of the Seller Inspection Materials. The CTAC further acknowledges and agrees that the Seller Inspection Materials will be provided to the CTAC for informational purposes only and that the CTAC shall not be entitled to rely thereon, but shall conduct its own independent inquiry and investigation with respect to the same. Except as otherwise provided in this

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 4 of 31



Contract, neither Seller nor any person representing or acting on behalf of Seller, including without limitation any of Seller's agents or consultants, has made or shall make any representation or warranty, express or implied, written or oral, as to the reliability, accuracy or completeness of any of the Seller Inspection Materials, and none of Seller or any of its employees or agents has or shall have any liability relating to the Seller Inspection Materials or for any errors therein or omissions therefrom; provided, however, notwithstanding the same Seller hereby represents that Seller has no actual knowledge (without any obligation of investigation or inspection) that any of the Seller Inspection Materials provided or to be provided by Seller to the CTAC are inaccurate, misleading, or incomplete. If this purchase and sale transaction does not close for any reason, then the CTAC shall return to Seller all Seller Inspection Materials in the CTAC's possession.

6. **DUE DILIGENCE INSPECTIONS.** The CTAC's due diligence period starts on the Effective Date of this Contract and shall continue for a period of thirty (30) calendar days (the "Inspection Period"). During the Inspection Period, the CTAC may conduct any surveys, surface and subsurface explorations, soil tests, engineering studies, environmental site assessments (provided, however, that absent prior written consent of Seller, CTAC's environmental and soil assessment of the Property shall be limited to a Phase I environmental assessment), and any other tests and investigations of the Property which the CTAC may elect to make to determine whether the Property is suitable, in the CTAC's sole and reasonable discretion, for the CTAC's intended use and development of the Property as a public facility, including administrative offices for CTAC staff; provided, however, that such Inspections shall not unreasonably disturb or interfere with the use or operations of Seller or any tenants. The CTAC may conduct any inspections during the Inspection Period which the CTAC deems necessary to determine to the CTAC's satisfaction the Property's engineering, architectural, environmental properties, including but not limited to building's structural systems, mechanical systems, building envelope, and interior building components; zoning and zoning restrictions; flood zone designation and restrictions; subdivision regulations; soil and grade; availability of access to public roads, water, and other utilities; consistency with local, state and regional growth management and comprehensive land use plans; compliance with all applicable building codes; availability of permits, government approvals and licenses; compliance with American with Disabilities Act; absence of asbestos, soil and ground water contamination; and other inspections that the CTAC deems appropriate to determine the suitability of the Property for the CTAC's intended use and development ("Inspections"); provided, however, that such Inspections shall not unreasonably disturb or interfere with the use or operations of Seller or any tenants.

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 5 of 31



The CTAC will deliver written notice to Seller prior to the expiration of the Inspection Period of the CTAC's determination of whether or not the Property is suitable in the CTAC's sole and reasonable discretion. The CTAC's failure to comply with this notice requirement will constitute acceptance of the Property in its present "as is" condition. Seller grants to the CTAC, its employees, agents, contractors and assigns, the right to enter the Property at any time during the Inspection Period for the purpose of conducting Inspections; provided, however, that the CTAC, its employees, agents, contractors and assigns enter the Property and conduct Inspections at their own risk; and provided further that such Inspections shall not unreasonably disturb or interfere with the use or operations of Seller or any tenants. Subject to the limitations contained in paragraph 38, the CTAC shall indemnify, defend and hold Seller harmless from and against any losses, damages, costs, claims and expenses of any nature, including attorneys' fees at all levels, and from liability to any person, arising from the conduct of any and all Inspections or any work authorized by the CTAC and this indemnity shall survive the Closing or termination of this Contract. The CTAC will not engage in any activity that could result in a mechanic's lien being filed against the Property without the Seller's prior written consent. In the event this transaction does not close, (a) the CTAC will repair all damage to the Property resulting from the Inspections and return the Property to the condition it was in prior to conduct of the Inspections, and (b) the CTAC will, at the CTAC's expense, promptly transmit to the Seller all reports and other work generated as a result of the Inspections.

If the CTAC determines, in its sole discretion, that the Property is not acceptable to the CTAC, it may terminate this contract by delivering written notice to Seller before the expiration of the Inspection Period of such election. In that event the Parties agree that this Contract shall terminate automatically, the \$50,000 deposit of CTAC shall be returned and other than the costs associated with the inspections addressed in this paragraph, the Parties shall have no further duties or obligations hereunder.

7. **EVIDENCE OF TITLE AND TITLE INSURANCE**. Within twenty (20) days after the Effective Date, the CTAC, at its sole cost and expense, shall obtain the Title Commitment for an ALTA Owner's Title Insurance Policy insuring the marketable record title of the Property from a recognized national title insurance company of CTAC's choice doing business in the Alachua County area. The Title Commitment shall describe the Property, shall be dated later than the Effective Date of this Contract, shall be in the full amount of the Purchase Price, shall have attached legible copies of all instruments referred to therein, and shall otherwise disclose the title to the Property to be good. marketable, and

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 6 of 31



insurable, subject only to the exceptions set forth in Exhibit "C" attached hereto ("Permitted Exceptions").

CTAC acknowledges that there is currently a month-to-month Tenant (known as Carr, Riggs & Ingram CPAs and Advisors), occupying the Property. The Seller has assured CTAC that this Tenant intends to vacate the Property by October 31, 2023; however, the Parties agree that the Closing will not be contingent upon this Tenant vacating the Property.

8. **SURVEY.** The CTAC may have the Property surveyed during the Inspection Period. If the Survey shows that (a) any encroachments on the Property, or that improvements, if any, on the Property encroach on other lands; (b) the Property is not contiguous to a publicly dedicated right of way; or (c) any other facts that affect the marketability of the title to the Property, then any such facts or matters so shown will constitute a Title Objection (defined below) for purposes of Paragraph 9 herein.

9. **TITLE REVIEW.**

The CTAC shall have until expiration of the Inspection Period (the "Title a. and Survey Review Period") to examine the Survey and Title Commitment and any supporting title documents, and, if the Survey, Title Commitment, or supporting title documents, reveal any encroachments, overlaps, easements, restrictions, covenants, conditions, other title defects or other matters objectionable to the CTAC (hereinafter referred to as the "Title Objections"), to furnish Seller with a written statement of the CTAC's Title Objections ("The CTAC's Title Objection Notice"). Any matters identified in the Title Commitment or the Survey and not objected to by the CTAC as set forth above shall be deemed to be approved by the CTAC, provided, however, the CTAC's failure to provide notice of any Mandatory Cure Items (defined below) shall not be deemed a waiver, the CTAC shall be deemed to have automatically objected to all Mandatory Cure Items, and the CTAC shall not be required to take title subject to any Mandatory Cure Items. In all events Seller shall be required to cure all Mandatory Cure Items. As used herein, the term "Mandatory Cure Item" or "Mandatory Cure Items" means (i) any mortgage, deed to secure debt, deed of trust or similar security instrument encumbering all or any part of the Property, (ii) any mechanic's, materialman's or similar lien (except to the extent resulting from any act or omission of the CTAC or any of its agents, contractors, representatives or employees), (iii) any judgment of record against Seller in the CTAC or other applicable jurisdiction in which the Property is located; (iv) all other liens or encumbrances evidencing monetary obligations of Seller; (v) all matters affecting title which are the result of Seller's voluntary acts occurring after the Effective Date of this

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 7 of **31**



Contract, to the extent not consented to by the CTAC in writing; and (vii) any other matters that Seller has agreed to cure or satisfy or is otherwise required to cure or satisfy pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

b. If the CTAC furnishes the CTAC's Title Objection Notice within the permitted time, then Seller shall have until seven (7) days after Seller's receipt of the CTAC's Title Objection Notice (the "Seller Title Response Period") in which to indicate to the CTAC which of the Title Objections raised by the CTAC that Seller will cure and those which Seller declines to cure, and if Seller does not respond in writing to the CTAC's Title Objection Notice within the Seller Title Response Period, then Seller shall be deemed to have declined to cure all Title Objections set forth in the CTAC's Title Objection Notice.

If Seller declines to cure any of the Title Objections set forth in the CTAC's c. Title Objection Notice (excluding Mandatory Cure Items, which Seller shall be required to cure in all events), then the CTAC may then do one of the following as the CTAC's sole remedy: (i) accept such Title Objections set forth in the CTAC's Title Objection Notice that Seller has declined to cure in writing (excluding Mandatory Cure Items, which Seller shall be required to cure in all events) as a Permitted Exception, and require Seller to deliver the title to the Property at the Closing subject to such uncured Title Objections (but subject to Seller curing all Mandatory Cure Items and any Title Objections set forth in the CTAC's Title Objection Notice that Seller has agreed to cure), with no reduction in the Purchase Price due to the same; or (ii) terminate this Contract, whereupon this Contract shall be automatically terminated, and all Parties released from further obligation hereunder except for any provision herein which expressly survives termination of this Contract. The CTAC's decision either to accept the Title Objections set forth in the CTAC's Title Objection Notice that Seller has declined to cure in writing as a Permitted Exception or to terminate this Contract shall be made by written notice thereof from the CTAC to Seller within the later of (A) three (3) business days after the CTAC receives written notice from Seller that Seller is declining to cure any of the Title Objections set forth in the CTAC's Title Objection Notice (or three (3) business days after the Seller Title Response Period if Seller fails to respond), or (B) the expiration of the Inspection Period. If the CTAC has not provided Seller with written notice of termination within the period set forth herein, any uncured Title Objections that Seller has declined to cure in writing (excluding Mandatory Cure Items, which Seller shall be required to cure in all events) shall become part of the Permitted Exceptions, and any such objection with respect to the same shall be deemed to have been waived and the CTAC shall be deemed to have elected option (i) above.

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 8 of 31



d. If Seller timely elects in writing to cure any of the Title Objections, or if Seller is deemed to have agreed to cure all or any of the Title Objections set forth in the CTAC's Title Objection Notice, then Seller shall have until the Closing Date to cure the applicable Title Objections ("Seller's Title Cure Period"), and the Closing Date shall be extended for a period of time, not to exceed sixty (60) calendar days, reasonably necessary to accommodate Seller's efforts to cure such applicable Title Objections. In all events, Seller shall cure all Mandatory Cure Items, and Seller shall use good faith and due diligence to cure the Title Objections it agrees to cure. If any such Title Objections, other than those that will be cured or satisfied at Closing, remain uncured by Seller at the end of Seller's Title Cure Period, then Seller shall give the CTAC written notice of Seller's failure to cure all the Title Objections and describe with specificity in that notice the Title Objections which remain uncured. The CTAC may then do one of the following: (i) accept the uncured Title Objections (excluding Mandatory Cure Items, which Seller shall be required to cure in all events) as Permitted Exceptions, and require Seller to deliver the title to the Property at the Closing subject to such uncured Title Objections with no reduction in the Purchase Price in connection with the same; or (ii) terminate this Contract, whereupon this Contract shall be automatically terminated, the Deposit returned to the CTAC and all Parties released from further obligation hereunder except for any provision herein which expressly survives termination of this Contract and any rights and remedies of the CTAC with respect to Seller defaults as set forth in this Contract. The CTAC's decision either to accept the uncured Title Objections or to terminate this Contract shall be made by written notice thereof from the CTAC to Seller within the later of (A) three (3) business days after the CTAC receives written notice from Seller of the uncured Title Objections, or (B) the Closing Date, and the Closing Date shall be extended to accommodate the CTAC's three (3) day response period described in Subparagraph (C) above, as applicable. If the CTAC has not provided Seller with written notice of termination within the period set forth herein, any uncured Title Objections (excluding Mandatory Cure Items, which Seller shall be required to cure in all events) shall be deemed to be acceptable to the CTAC and shall become part of the Permitted Exceptions, and any objection shall be deemed to have been waived and the CTAC shall be deemed to have elected option (i) above. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, if Seller fails to cure all Mandatory Cure Items and other Title Objections which are the result of Seller's voluntary acts occurring after the Effective Date of this Contract, Seller shall be in default hereunder and the CTAC shall have all rights and remedies available to the CTAC hereunder.

e. If, following the expiration of the Title and Survey Review Period, any new matters appear on any update to the Title Commitment or any update to the Survey that affects the Property, then the provisions of this Paragraph 9 shall apply thereto except the

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 9 of 31



time period in which the CTAC may object shall expire five (5) days after the CTAC receives said update, and the Seller Title Response Period for the same shall expire three (3) business days thereafter. In addition, if any time periods provided for in this Paragraph 9(e) extend beyond the Closing Date, then the Closing Date shall be extended until a date which is five (5) business days after the last applicable date. Except as may otherwise be expressly permitted under this Contract, Seller shall not permit any new encumbrances on the Property after the Effective Date without the CTAC's prior written consent.

10. ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT. The CTAC's obligation to purchase the Property is contingent on the CTAC being able to obtain an environmental site assessment of the Property during the Inspection Period, which the CTAC determines, in its sole discretion, to be satisfactory for its intended use and development of the Property. If the results of the environmental site assessment or any Environmental Reports furnished to the CTAC by a third-party consultant or the Seller reveal that any portion of the Property is contaminated or violates applicable federal, state or local laws, ordinances, codes, rules, orders or regulations relating to pollution or protection of the environment or to threatened or endangered species (collectively the "Environmental Defects"), the CTAC shall provide written notice to the Seller of the Environmental Defects prior to the expiration of the Inspection Period. Should the CTAC provide such notice, the Seller shall have 20 days after the date of said notice to elect, in Seller's sole discretion, whether to correct or remove the Environmental Defects. In the event that Seller elects to correct or remove the Environmental Defects within such 20-day period by written notice to CTAC, then the Closing Date shall be extended 70 days after the date of such notice (the "Extended Closing Date"). If the Seller is unable, after reasonable effort, to correct or remove the Environmental Defects that Seller elects to correct or remove within the 70 day time period, or if Seller elects not to correct or remove any Environmental Defects, the CTAC may either: (a) accept the Environmental Defects and close this transaction according to the terms of this Contract no later than the end of the Extended Closing Date, or (b) terminate this Contract by written notice to the Seller, as may be determined and elected by the CTAC Manager without further approval by the Board, whereupon all Parties shall be relieved of all further obligations under this Contract.

11. **CASUALTY LOSS.** In the event any portion of the improvements located on the Property is damaged or destroyed by wind, fire, casualty, disease, or by any other means or act of God, prior to closing, to an extent greater than Thousand and No/100 Dollars (\$100,000.00) in value, then the CTAC, as determined by the CTAC Executive Director, may either: (a) accept such loss and close this transaction according to the terms of this

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 10 of 31



Contract; or (b) terminate this Contract by written notice to the Seller, whereupon all Parties shall be relieved of all further obligations under this Contract. Seller represents that it has standard casualty and property damage insurance coverage sufficient to cover foreseeable damage to the property in the amount set forth above. Provided, however, if the CTAC proceeds to closing, the Seller shall be obligated to repair all damage to the improvements to the extent covered by insurance, regardless of the amount of such damage or, at the option of the CTAC, Seller shall assign all insurance or condemnation proceeds resulting from the loss or damage to the CTAC.

12. **INSPECTIONS.** The CTAC may perform visual inspections of the Property at any time prior to Closing; provided, however, that such visual inspections shall not unreasonably disturb or interfere with the use or operations of Seller or any tenants.

13. **CLOSING DATE; APPROVALS**. This transaction shall be closed at a date and time mutually agreed upon by the Parties no later than thirty (30) days after the expiration of the Inspection Period (the "**Closing Date**"), as may be extended as provided herein, at or through the offices of the Escrow Agent, unless otherwise provided for herein or agreed to by the Parties in writing. The Executive Director of CTAC has the authority to agree, on behalf of the CTAC, to terminate this Contract, or to extend the Inspection Period, Cure Period, or the Closing Date, without further approval by the CTAC Board.

14. **EXPENSES**. The Parties shall pay closing costs and expenses as follows:

SELLER:

- Documentary stamp tax on the deed of conveyance;
- Preparation of all closing documents necessary to cure title defects; which are not Permitted Exceptions (if any);
- Past due taxes (if any);
- Seller's attorney's fees; and
- Seller's brokerage fees (if any)

CTAC:

- Environmental site assessment costs;
- Survey;
- Owners Title Insurance Policy for the CTAC (including all related search and abstract fees);
- Closing Agent fees (including the preparation of all closing

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 11 of 31



documents, except those that are necessary to cure title defects and are thus Seller's responsibility);

- Recording costs; and
- CTAC's attorney's fees.

15. AD VALOREM TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS ON THE PROPERTY.

a. For the year of closing, the Seller shall be responsible for and pay at closing all unpaid ad valorem taxes and assessments on the Property relating to the period of time that Seller owned the Property, and to discharge the lien of such ad valorem taxes and assessments relating to the period of time that Seller owned the Property. The Seller may take advantage of all legal procedures for discharging such lien by paying an estimated, prorated amount into escrow with the applicable tax collector(s) as provided by Section 196.295, Florida Statutes, Rule 12D-13.016, Florida Administrative Code and other applicable provisions of law. Seller shall not be responsible for any taxes or assessments incurred after closing. CTAC as a governmental entity is immune from taxation for property it owns.

b. For all years prior to the year of closing, the Seller shall be responsible for and pay at closing all unpaid ad valorem taxes and assessments on the Property, to discharge any and all liens of such ad valorem taxes and assessments.

16. **ASSESSMENTS AND FEES.** The Seller shall fully pay the following at or prior to closing, to the extent relating to the period of time that Seller owned the Property: all unpaid public assessments for street, sidewalk or other improvements, if any; city or county garbage disposal fees, incineration fees, fire service fees, and the like; impact fees payable with respect to the Property; and any other fees or payments due to any governmental authority with respect to the Property.

17. **CLOSING DOCUMENTS**: The CTAC's Executive Director is hereby delegated the authority to execute all closing documents on behalf of the CTAC that are necessary to close this transaction, including but not limited to the HUD-1 Settlement Statement. Except as specifically provided below, the Seller shall deliver or provide the Closing Agent with information necessary to produce the following documents at or prior to closing:

a. An Affidavit of Non-Foreign Status, Notice of Non-Recognition, or Withholding Certificate to establish compliance with the Foreign Investment and Real Property Tax Act of 1980 "FIRPTA". Any such documents executed and delivered by the

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 12 of 31



Seller must comply with the provisions of FIRPTA and any regulations or rules promulgated thereunder. If the Closing Agent or the CTAC has actual knowledge or has received notice that the information contained or representations made in such document(s) is false, or if the document(s) does not otherwise comply with FIRPTA, then the Closing Agent shall withhold 10% - 15% of the amount realized by the Seller and shall remit such amount to the IRS at closing along with the properly completed remittance form.

b. Seller shall furnish a Seller's affidavit, in form reasonably acceptable to the Closing Agent, the title insurance company, and the CTAC, sufficient to remove standard printed exceptions to title in the Owner's Title Insurance Policy regarding (i) rights or claims of Parties in possession; and (ii) mechanic's liens.

c. An affidavit affirming the Seller's representations and warranties listed in Paragraph 23.

d. IRS 1099 Form, if required.

e. Incumbency Certificate, Resolution and Affidavit, in a form acceptable to the Closing Agent, from the Seller if the Seller is not a natural person.

f. Seller shall deliver satisfaction(s), release(s) or estoppel letters from lenders and others holding mortgages or liens on the Property.

g. Seller shall deliver an assignment of all of Seller's rights, title and interest in all development rights, permits, licenses, benefits, consents, or approvals, surveys, soil tests, water, sewer, or other utility capacity verification or reservation, development plans, engineering plans or specifications, tests, reports, studies, appraisals, analyses and similar documents or information.

h. As may be required by the Title Commitment, Seller shall deliver (i) documents, instruments, or other writings executed, drafted. or issued by the City wherein the City does or otherwise confirms it release(s), quit claim(s), renounce(s), or quiet(s) any and all right, title, or interest in the Property; or (ii) such other documentation as may be reasonably needed by the Closing Agent or title insurance company to issue the Owner's Title Insurance Policy without exception for any and all right, title, or interest of the City in and to the Property.

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 13 of 31



i. Any other documents or information the Closing Agent reasonably requests or requires to complete the transaction.

18. **CONVEYANCE**. At closing, the Seller shall convey fee simple title of the Property to the CTAC by special warranty deed, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances except for the Permitted Exceptions and those matters expressly allowed for herein or otherwise agreed to by the Parties in writing. The CTAC Board authorizes the Executive Director of CTAC to accept liens and encumbrances related to the Property without requiring further approval of the CTAC Board. The deeds of conveyance shall: (1) utilize the "metes and bounds" legal descriptions of the Property; and (2) meet the standards of the Closing Agent and the CTAC as to form. Exclusive possession of the Property shall pass to the CTAC at the time of closing.

19. **TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE**. In all matters relating to this Contract, **TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE**.

20. **NO ALTERATIONS PRIOR TO CLOSING.** After the Effective Date, the Seller will not, without prior written consent from the CTAC, (i) execute or enter into any lease, contract, option, easement, license, mortgage, financing statement, security agreement, or similar document concerning or affecting the Property, or (ii) materially alter the Property; provided, however, that Seller shall be permitted to engage in routine cleaning, maintenance and repair activities without the necessity of obtaining any consent from CTAC.

21. **GENERAL CONDITIONS TO OBLIGATIONS OF THE CTAC**. The obligations of the CTAC are, at the option of the CTAC, contingent upon these conditions:

a. The representations and warranties made by Seller herein shall be correct statements of fact as said facts exist as of the Closing Date, and at all times between the Effective Date and the Closing Date.

b. All terms, covenants, agreements and provisions of this Contract to be complied with and performed by the Seller on or before the Closing Date shall have been duly complied with or performed.

22. **GENERAL CONDITIONS TO OBLIGATIONS OF THE SELLER**. The obligations of the Seller are, at the option of the Seller, contingent upon these conditions:

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 14 of 31



a. The representations and warranties made by CTAC herein shall be correct statements of fact as said facts exist as of the Closing Date, and at all times between the Effective Date and the Closing Date.

b. All terms, covenants, agreements and provisions of this Contract to be complied with and performed by the CTAC on or before the Closing Date shall have been duly complied with or performed.

23. **REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND COVENANTS OF SELLER.** The Seller hereby represents, warrants, and covenants to and with the CTAC as follows:

a. To the best of Seller's knowledge and belief, except for those matters that will be discharged at closing, the Seller, and only the Seller, holds fee simple title to the Property and neither the Seller nor any other party has a common law or statutory way of necessity over or across the Property pursuant to §704.01, Florida Statutes.

b. From and after the Effective Date, Seller shall not enter into any contracts, agreements, encumbrances, liens, or other documents or instruments for or regarding the sale, transfer, disposition, assignment, conveyance, encumbrance, lien, pledge, of any Property, or any part thereof or any interest therein, or which may result in any lien or encumbrance with regard to the Property, or any part thereof, or an interest therein, without the prior written consent of the CTAC.

c. The person executing this Contract on behalf of the Seller is fully and duly authorized to do so by Seller, and any and all actions required to make this Contract and the performance thereof legally binding obligations of Seller, have been duly and legally taken. No further consent, authorization or approval of any person or entity is required for Seller to enter into or perform this transaction.

d. Seller has paid (or covenants that it will pay prior to Closing) any and all taxes (excluding taxes not yet due) which have or could become a lien or charge against the Property, subject to the proration therein provided.

e. To the best of Seller's knowledge and belief, except for the liens, encumbrances, or charges against the Property specifically disclosed in this Contract, there are no other liens, encumbrances, unpaid bills to vendors, outstanding obligations or charges (contingent or absolute) in existence against such Seller or any businesses conducted thereon, or any existing undisclosed or unrecorded liens, encumbrances or

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 15 of 31



charges, which could adversely affect title to the Property after the Effective Date or the Closing Date, and Seller has no knowledge of any matters pending that could result in a lien against the Property, or in any way substantially adversely affect title to the Property.

f. From and after the Effective Date, Seller will not cause, permit, suffer, or allow any change, modification or alternation to be made to the Property, or any part or portion thereof, or its physical condition without the prior written consent of CTAC; provided, however, that Seller shall be permitted to engage in routine cleaning, maintenance and repair activities without the necessity of obtaining any consent of CTAC.

g. Other than Carr, Riggs & Ingram CPAs and Advisors, there are no leases of the Property, or any portion thereof.

h. To the best of Seller's actual information and belief, during its ownership the Property has never been used for the dumping, disposal, manufacture, handling, transportation, storage, or usage of any toxic or hazardous wastes or materials, and no such toxic or hazardous waste or materials are present on, in, or under the Property. As used herein "hazardous or toxic wastes or materials" shall mean and refer to any substance or matter giving rise to liability or regulations under any federal, state, or local law, statute, regulation, rule or ordinance.

i. To the best of the Seller's actual information and belief, no party or person has ever used the Property as a dump, landfill or garbage disposal site.

j. To the best of the Seller's actual information and belief, the Property presently complies with all applicable environmental laws, rules and regulations.

k. The Seller has no actual knowledge of any previous violations of applicable environmental laws, rules and regulations regarding the Property.

1. The Seller has not received notice from any government agency that the Property violates any federal, state or local laws, ordinances, codes, rules, orders or regulations or that any remedial action is required on the Property.

m. The Seller has no actual knowledge that there are any endangered species (as defined by state or federal law) on the Property.

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 16 of 31



n. The Seller is not a "foreign person" as that term is defined in 26 U.S.C.A. 1445(f)(3), nor is the sale of the Property subject to any withholding requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Code, including but not limited to 26 U.S.C.A. 1445.

o. Upon closing, sole and exclusive possession of the Property shall transfer to the CTAC and Seller shall turn over the Property in broom clean condition, free of junk, rubbish, trash and debris.

p. To the best of Seller's knowledge and belief, there are no actions, suits or proceedings of any kind or nature whatsoever legal or equitable, actual or threatened, affecting the Property, or any portion thereof, or relating to or arising out of the ownership of the Property, in any court or before or by any Federal, state, CTAC or municipal department, commission, board, bureau, or agency or other government instrumentality.

q. No person, firm or other legal entity other than the CTAC has any right or option whatsoever to acquire the Property or any portion thereof, or any interest therein.

r. The execution and delivery of this Contract and the consummation of the transaction contemplated herein shall not and do not constitute a violation or breach by Seller of any provision of any agreement or other instrument to which Seller is a party or to which Seller may be subject although not a party, nor result in or constitute, to the best of Seller's knowledge and belief, a violation or breach of any judgment, order, writ, injunction or decree issued against Seller.

s. Except as stated in Paragraph 5 above, no representation, warranty or covenant in this Contract, nor any document, certificate or exhibit given or delivered to CTAC pursuant to this Contract, when read singularly or together as a whole, contains any untrue statement of a material fact, or omits a material fact necessary to make the statements contained therein true in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, to the best of Seller's knowledge.

t. Seller is not subject to any bankruptcy proceeding, assignment for benefit of creditors, receivership or similar proceedings and that the conveyance of the Property as set out herein will not result in the Seller becoming bankrupt or insolvent.

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Contract, CTAC hereby expressly acknowledges and agrees that Seller makes no representations or warranties of any kind pertaining to any of the Property to be conveyed by Seller to CTAC, whether express or

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 17 of 31



implied, including without limitation warranties or representations as to matters of title, use, zoning, tax consequences, physical or environmental conditions, operating history or projections. valuation, governmental approvals, merchantability, marketability, profitability, suitability or fitness for a particular use or purpose, the manner or quality of the construction or materials of the Property, the manner, quality, state of repair or lack of repair of the Property, and the completeness or accuracy of any information or materials provided to CTAC. In the event of Closing, the Property is being sold and accepted by CTAC in "AS IS", "WHERE IS" condition, and "WITH ALL FAULTS" except as expressly set forth in this Contract or in documents to be delivered at Closing pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Except for the warranties and representations expressly made by Seller in this Contract or in documents to be delivered at Closing pursuant to this Contract, Seller expressly disclaims any and all warranties, express or implied, relating in any way to the nature, quality, condition, use, operation or history of the Property, improvements and personal property to be conveyed by Seller to CTAC. CTAC is relying on its own investigation of the Property, and CTAC expressly represents that it has not relied upon and will not rely upon, either directly or indirectly, any representation or warranty of Seller or any agent of Seller except as may be specifically set forth in this Contract.

24. **REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE CTAC**. CTAC hereby represents and warrants to Seller as follows:

a. The person executing this Contract on behalf of CTAC is fully and duly authorized to do so by CTAC, and any and all actions required to make this Contract and the performance thereof legally binding obligations of CTAC, have been duly and legally taken. No further consent, authorization or approval of any person or entity is required for CTAC to enter into or perform this transaction.

b. The execution and delivery of this Contract and the consummation of the transaction contemplated herein shall not and do not constitute a violation or breach by CTAC of any provision of any agreement or other instrument to which CTAC is a party or to which CTAC may be subject although not a party, nor result in or constitute, to the best of CTAC's knowledge and belief, a violation or breach of any judgment, order, writ, injunction or decree issued against CTAC.

c. No representation, warranty or covenant in this Contract, nor any document, certificate or exhibits given or delivered to Seller pursuant to this Contract, when read singularly or together as a whole, contains any untrue statement of material fact, or omits a material fact necessary to make the statement contained therein true in light of the circumstances under which they were made.

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 18 of 31



25. **CONTINUING REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTIES**. The representations and warranties of the Parties contained herein shall be continuing up to and including the Closing Date and at all times between the Effective Date hereof and the Closing Date, with the same force and effect as though such representations and warranties had been made as of Closing, and shall survive the closing of this transaction and remain in effect and enforceable by the Parties for a period of one (1) year after the Closing Date.

26. **EMINENT DOMAIN.** The Seller has no knowledge of any threatened or pending eminent domain proceedings affecting the Property. In the event eminent domain proceedings are pending (without Seller's knowledge) or instituted after the Effective Date, to acquire all or any part of Property, the Parties agree that:

a. The Seller shall, upon discovery, immediately notify the CTAC of such threatened or pending eminent domain proceedings and provide to the CTAC copies of all written correspondences, pleadings or other papers concerning the eminent domain proceeding as the Seller receives them.

b. The CTAC may either: (i) terminate this Contract by written notice to the Seller, whereupon the Parties shall be relieved of all further obligations under this Contract; or (ii) the CTAC may elect to keep this Contract in full force and effect and assume sole control and direction (including settlement authority) of the eminent domain proceedings. In the event of Closing pursuant to this Contract, the CTAC shall receive the eminent domain award and the Purchase Price shall remain as defined above. The Seller shall execute all assignments or documents as are reasonably necessary to accomplish the same.

27. **REAL ESTATE COMMISSIONS**. Seller and CTAC hereby acknowledge that Perry G. McDonald of Bosshardt Realty Services LLC and Daniel Drotos of Colliers International of Gainesville are the sole brokers either party has dealt with in regards to this transaction and, if CTAC acquires the Property pursuant to this Contract, that said brokers will be compensated by Seller pursuant to a separate listing agreement. Except with respect to the above-identified brokers, Seller and CTAC shall indemnify and hold harmless the other from and against any claim for any real estate sales commission, finder's fee, consulting fee, or other compensation in connection with the sale contemplated hereby and arising out of any act or agreement of such party. The indemnity obligations set forth above in this section shall survive both the Closing of the sale contemplated hereby and any termination of this Contract.

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 19 of 31



28. **AUTHORITY**. Each party hereby represents and warrants to the other party, which representations and warranties shall be true and shall be deemed to be restated at the closing:

a. Each party has full authority to bind itself to the obligations stated herein, including but not limited to, providing any necessary resolutions or like documents indicating consent and approval.

b. The execution and delivery of this Contract and consummation of the transaction contemplated hereby shall not (i) constitute a default under any instrument, document or obligation to which it is now, or may become a party, or by which it may be bound or affected, or (ii) violate any order, writ, injunction or decree of any court in any litigation to which it is a party.

29. **DEFAULT**.

a. Unless otherwise specified in this Contract, in the event any condition of this Contract is not met by Seller, CTAC has timely given any required notice regarding the condition having not been met by Seller, and the sale contemplated hereby does not close, then the Deposit will be returned in accordance with applicable Florida Laws and regulations.

b. In the event Seller breaches its covenant to convey the Property to the CTAC or otherwise fails to perform its material obligations under this Contract, CTAC may provide Seller with written notice of the same and Seller shall thereafter have five (5) business days in which to cure the same. If Seller is unable or unwilling to cure the alleged default and the purchase and sale hereunder is not closed by reason thereof, CTAC shall have the right to (i) seek specific performance of this Contract, or (ii) terminate this Contract by providing written notice of such termination to Seller, whereupon the Deposit shall be returned to CTAC, and the parties shall have no further rights, duties, liabilities or obligations hereunder, except as expressly set forth herein. To the extent any alleged default involves a default of any of Seller's material representations, covenants or obligations hereunder, then, in the event of the Deposit to CTAC, Seller shall, within ten (10) business days thereafter, pay to CTAC, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, an amount equal to all third party out-of-pocket costs and expenses incurred by CTAC in connection with the transaction

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 20 of 31



contemplated by this Contract in an aggregate amount not to exceed Fifteen Thousand and 00/100 Dollars (\$15,000.00).

In the event any material representation, covenant or obligation of CTAC c. hereunder should at any time prior to Closing become untrue or unsatisfied, Seller may provide CTAC with written notice of the same and CTAC shall thereafter have five (5) business days in which to cure the same (provided, however, that no such notice and cure period shall be required if the event of default is CTAC's failure to timely close). If CTAC is unable or unwilling to cure the alleged default and the purchase and sale hereunder is not closed by reason thereof, then the Deposit shall be paid to Seller as full liquidated damages for such default by CTAC. It is specifically understood and agreed that payment of the Deposit to Seller, as liquidated damages, is Seller's sole and exclusive remedy hereunder, and Seller is hereby specifically waiving and relinquishing any and all other remedies at law or in equity. The Parties acknowledge that the actual amount of the damages which Seller would sustain as a result of CTAC's breach of this Contract are difficult or impossible to estimate, that the Deposit represents the Parties' best estimate of Seller's damages in the event of such breach, that said stipulated sum is a reasonable preestimate of the probable loss resulting from such a breach, and that payment of the Deposit to Seller is not to be construed as a penalty or forfeiture.

d. In no event shall either party be entitled to any remedies or damages for breach of this Contract except as set forth herein. In no event shall any party be entitled to punitive or consequential damages for the breach of this Contract.

30. **FURTHER ASSURANCES**. The Parties shall execute such further documents and do any and all such further things as may be reasonably necessary to implement and carry out the intent of this Contract.

31. **NOTICES.** Any notice, demand, request, or other communication required or permitted by this Contract or by law shall be in writing and delivered by one of the following methods: (a) delivered in person with signed proof of delivery, (b) delivered by United States certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or (c) delivered by a commercial courier service (such as Federal Express) to the following addresses:

Seller:

Davis Monk & Company Attn: Joseph W. Davis

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 21 of 31



2735 NW 22nd Drive Gainesville, FL 32605

With a copy to:

Withers Harvey, P.A. Attn: Richard I. Withers, Esq. 1120 NW 8th Avenue Gainesville, Florida 32601

CTAC:

Executive Director CTAC 802 NW 5th Av. Ste, 100 Gainesville, Florida 32601

With a copy to:

Sylvia Torres, County Attorney Alachua County Attorney's Office 12 SE 1st Street 2nd Floor Gainesville, Florida 32601

To change or update any of the addresses above, the notifying party shall provide notice of the change in writing to the other party using the methods set out above. Such notice shall be deemed effective as of the date of receipt of such notice by personal delivery or commercial courier service, or the date of receipt or refusal of such notice by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested.

32. **ASSIGNMENT**. This Contract may not be assigned by either party without the written consent of the other party.

33. **PERSONS BOUND**. This Contract shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, legal representatives, successors, and permitted assigns.

34. **ESCROW**. Any Escrow Agent receiving funds or equivalent is authorized and agrees by acceptance thereof to deposit promptly and to hold same in escrow and subject to clearance thereof to disburse same in accordance with the terms and conditions of this

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 22 of 31



Contract. Failure of clearance of funds shall not excuse performance by the CTAC and may be treated as a default by the CTAC at the option of the Seller. In the event of doubt as to the Escrow Agent's duties or liabilities under the provisions of this Contract, the Escrow Agent may, in agent's sole discretion, continue to hold the funds in escrow until the Parties mutually agree to the disbursement thereof, or until a judgment or a court of competent jurisdiction shall determine the rights of the Parties thereto, or Closing Agent may deposit same with the clerk of the circuit court having jurisdiction of the dispute, and upon notifying all Parties concerned of such action, all liability on the part of the Escrow Agent shall fully terminate, except to the extent of accounting for any items theretofore delivered out of escrow. In the event of any suit between CTAC and Seller wherein the Escrow Agent is made a party by virtue of acting as an escrow agent hereunder, or in the event of any suit wherein Escrow Agent interpleads the subject matter of this escrow, the agent shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney's fees and costs incurred, said fees and costs to be charged and assessed as court costs in favor of the prevailing party. All Parties agree that the Escrow Agent shall not be liable to any party or person whomsoever for misdelivery to CTAC or Seller of items subject to escrow, unless such misdelivery shall be due to willful breach of this Contract or gross negligence on the part of the Closing Agent.

- 35. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Contract contains all of the agreements, representations and warranties of the Parties hereto with respect to the Property, and supersedes all other discussions, understandings or agreements in respect to the subject matter hereof. All prior discussions, understandings and agreements are merged into this Contract, which alone fully and completely expresses the agreements and understandings of the Parties hereto. This Contract may be amended, superseded, extended or modified only by an instrument in writing referring hereto signed by all Parties.
- 36. **APPLICABLE LAW; VENUE**. This Contract shall be interpreted, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. Sole and exclusive venue shall be in Alachua County, Florida.
- 37. **WAIVER OF RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY**. Each party waives its rights to demand trial by jury.
- 38. **SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY**. The CTAC fully retains all sovereign immunity protections afforded to it as an independent taxing district of the State of Florida. The CTAC waives nothing by entering into this Contract. All claims against the CTAC that are permissible

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023 Page 201

Page 23 of 31



pursuant to the partial waiver of sovereign immunity set forth in §768.28, Florida Statutes, must strictly comply with the procedures found in §768.28, Florida Statutes.

- 39. **SEVERABILITY**. In the event any portion of this Contract is found to be unenforceable, the remainder of this Contract shall remain in full force and effect if the deletion of such portion shall neither affect the overall intent of this Contract, nor materially impair the benefits negotiated by each party hereunder.
- 40. **CONSTRUCTION**. The provisions of this Contract have been carefully and fully negotiated between the Parties, each of which has relatively equal bargaining power. The terms of this Contract are to be construed in accordance with their fair meaning and intent and are not to be construed against either party merely because such party or its counsel drafted this Contract. In the event a day of performance falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday under the laws of the State of Florida, the day of performance shall be automatically extended to the next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.
- 41. **NO RECORDING OF CONTRACT**. The Parties agree that neither the CTAC nor the Seller shall cause this Contract to be recorded in any public records relating to the Property.
- 42. **COUNTERPARTS**. This Contract may be executed by the Parties hereto individually or in combination, in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be an original, and all of which shall constitute one and the same contract. This Contract may be executed and delivered by facsimile and/or email transmission, with the intention that such facsimile and/or email signature and delivery shall have the same effect as an original signature and actual delivery. Execution of this document may be by digital means and the parties shall be bound by that method.
- 43. **HEADINGS**. The captions and headings contained in this Contract are for reference purposes only, and shall not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation hereof.
- 44. WAIVER. No provision of this Contract or any rights hereunder may be waived unless such waiver is in writing and is signed by the party waiving such provision or right. The waiver by one party of the performance of any covenant or condition herein shall not invalidate this Contract, nor shall it be considered to be a waiver by such party of any other covenant or condition herein. The waiver by either or both Parties of the time for performing any act shall not constitute a waiver of the time for performing any other act or an identical act required to be performed at a later time. The exercise of any remedy

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023 Page

Page 24 of 31



provided by law or in the provisions of this Contract shall not exclude other remedies unless they are expressly excluded.

[Signature pages follow]

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 25 of 31



EXECUTED this 26 day of September, 2023, by the following authorized representatives of the Seller.

SELLER:

DAVIS MONK & COMPANY

a Florida general partnership

Joseph W. Davis

Its: General Partner

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of:

Witness No 1 Signature

Richard H. the () Witness No 1 Print Name.

Witness No 2 Signature

Sarah K. Wilmoth

Witness No 2 Print Name

STATE OF FLORIDA **COUNTY OF ALACHUA**

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of [12] physical presence or [_] online notarization on September 26, 2023, by Joseph W. Davis, as General Partner of Davis, Monk & Company. Said person is [personally known to me or [] produced _____ as identification.

(type of identification)

Notary Public - State of Florida

Print Name: Sarah K. Wilmoth



Commission Number:

Commission Expiration Date:

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 26 of 31



EXECUTED this _____ day of ______, 2023, by the Chair of the Children's Trust of Alachua County, an independent taxing district of the State of Florida, acting within her signature authority as granted by the Children's Trust of Alachua County.

CHILDREN'S TRUST OF ALACHUA COUNTY

ATTEST:

By:_____ Tina Certain, Chair

Date:

Ken Cornell Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Counsel for the Children's Trust

EXHIBIT LIST

Exhibit A – Legal Description of Parcel Exhibit B –Beneficial Interest and Disclosure Affidavit Form **Exhibit C – Permitted Exceptions**

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 27 of 31



EXHIBIT A – Legal Description of Property

TAX PARCEL NUMBER 06107-005-000

A tract of land situated in Section 26, Township 9 South, Range 19 East, City of Gainesville, Alachua County, Florida, said tract of land being more particularly described as follows:

Commence at the Southwest corner of the aforementioned Section 26, Township 9 South, Range 19 East for a point of reference and run North $00^{\circ}04'48''$ East, along the West line of said Section 26 and along the centerline of NW 43rd Street, a distance of 1410.00 feet to the intersection of said centerline with the centerline of NW 27th Lane; thence run South $89^{\circ}55'12''$ East, along said centerline of N.W. 27th Lane, a distance of 500.00 feet; thence run South $00^{\circ}04'48''$ West, a distance of 235.00 feet to a concrete monument and the True Point of Beginning; thence continue South $00^{\circ}04'48''$ West, a distance of 180.00 feet to a concrete monument on the Northerly line of NW 25th Place; thence run South $64^{\circ}10'09''$ East, along said Northerly line, a distance of 186.83 feet to a concrete monument at the beginning of a curve concave Northwesterly, said curve having a radius of 50.00 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North $57^{\circ}57'20''$ East, 84.69 feet respectively; thence run Northeasterly with said curve through an arc angle of $115^{\circ}45'03'$, an arc distance of 101.01 feet to a concrete monument at the end of said curve; thence run North $00^{\circ}04'48''$ East, along the West line of NW 40th Street, a distance of 216.14 feet to a concrete monument; thence run North $89^{\circ}55'12''$ West, a distance of 240.00 feet to the True Point of Beginning.

Page 28 of 31



EXHIBIT B – Beneficial Interest and Disclosure Affidavit Form

AFFIDAVIT OF DISCLOSURE OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

STATE OF ______ COUNTY OF ______

Before me, the undersigned authority, personally appeared who was sworn and makes the following statements:

1. Affiant has personal knowledge of the facts contained herein.

2. Affiant makes this affidavit concerning the following described property (the "**Property**") located in Alachua County, Florida which is being sold and conveyed to the Children's Trust of Alachua County, Florida, an independent taxing district of the State of Florida:

See Exhibit "A" attached hereto.

3. The Property is owned by ______(the "Owner"). Affiant is an Authorized Person of the Owner.

4. I make this affidavit pursuant to the entity disclosure requirements listed in §286.23, Florida Statues concerning real property being conveyed to a public agency.

5. The following are the names and addresses of all parties having any beneficial interest in the Owner:



Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 29 of 31



Further Affiant Sayeth Naught.

DATED: _____

Ву:_____

Printed Nam	e:			
rinned Nam	c			

SWO	DRN	TO,	SUBSCRIBED	AND	ACKNOWLEDGED	before	me	on	
			, by						
who is \Box personally known to me or \Box who has produced									
identificatio	n.								

Sign:

 $\{S E A L\}$

Print: _____

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 30 of 31



EXHIBIT C – Permitted Exceptions

"Permitted Exceptions" shall mean: (i) zoning and other regulatory laws and ordinances affecting the Property; (ii) items created by or through CTAC, and the exceptions to title approved by CTAC during the Inspection Period: (iii) any matters of record as of the Effective Date which were not objected to by CTAC in the CTAC's Title Objection Notice; (iv) any matters of title to which CTAC objected in the CTAC's Title Objection Notice but for which Seller has indicated (or is deemed to have indicated) that it will take no curative action; and (v) any matters which would be disclosed by an accurate survey and inspection of the Property.

Page 31 of 31



CONTRACT TO PURCHASE REAL PROPERTY

THIS CONTRACT TO PURCHASE REAL PROPERTY (this "Contract") is made and entered into by and between Davis Monk & Company, a Florida general partnership with its principal address of 4010 NW 25th Place, Gainesville, Florida 32606 ("Seller"), and the Children's Trust of Alachua County, an independent taxing district of the State of Florida, by and through its governing body, whose address is 802 NW 5th Ave, Ste 100, Gainesville, FL 32601 ("CTAC"). Collectively, the Seller and the CTAC shall be referred to herein as the "Parties."

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Seller owns that certain real property bearing Alachua County Parcel Identification No. 06107-005-000 that is more particularly described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto (the "Property"); and

WHEREAS, CTAC desires to purchase the Property from the Seller, contingent upon the provisions provided herein; and

WHEREAS, the Seller desires to sell the Property to the CTAC as provided herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and promises contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of is hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows:

1. **EFFECTIVE DATE; RECITALS**. This Contract shall become effective as of the day and year upon which Seller and the CTAC have all executed this Contract as set forth on the signature page hereof (the "**Effective Date**"). The above-referenced recitals are true and correct and the same are hereby incorporated into this Contract for all purposes.

2. **DEFINITIONS**. The capitalized terms below shall have the following meanings herein:

Closing shall mean the date of the closing of this transaction for the Property.

Escrow Agent and *Closing Agent* shall mean David Menet, of Salter Feiber, Attorneys at Law located at 3940 NW 16th Blvd, Bldg. B. Gainesville, FL 32605, email: <u>davidm@salterlaw.net</u>. It will not be necessary for the Escrow Agent to execute this

Contract or any amendments to this Contract. By delivery to and acceptance by the Escrow Agent of a fully executed copy of this Contract along with the Deposit, the Escrow Agent agrees to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Contract specifically relating to the Deposit. However, no amendments to this Contract will adversely affect or impair the rights or duties, or increase the liability of, the Escrow Agent hereunder without the Escrow Agent's prior written approval.

Title Commitment shall mean the written commitment of a Florida-licensed title insurance company to insure and provide title insurance policies to the CTAC. The Escrow Agent shall ensure the CTAC is the named insured for the Property. The Escrow Agent will obtain the necessary title assurances and policy.

Surveyed Acres shall mean the total number of acres of the Property excluding: (1) public rights of way; (2) railroad rights of way; (3) cemeteries; (4) lands under control or possession of anyone other than the Seller; and/or (5) lands below the ordinary high water line or mean high water line of any river, lake or stream, if any.

Survey shall mean an ATLA survey of the Property made by a Florida licensed surveyor who the CTAC shall select from its list of approved surveyors. In addition to the ATLA survey requirements, the surveyor shall: (1) certify the Survey to the CTAC, the Seller, the Closing Agent, and the Florida licensed title insurance company issuing the Title Commitment; (2) meet the requirements of Chapter 472, Florida Statutes; (3) provide a "metes and bounds" legal description of the Property; and (4) list the exact number of Surveyed Acres to the hundredth decimal place or as reasonably practical.

Environmental Reports shall mean any and all environmental site assessments, audits, reports, and/or correspondence relating to any potential environmental matters on any portion of the Property.

3. **PURCHASE OF PROPERTY**.

a. <u>The Property</u>. Seller represents and warrants to the CTAC that it holds fee simple title to that certain real property located at 4010 NW 25th Place, Gainesville, Alachua County, Florida, bearing Alachua County Property Appraiser's parcel ID#: 06107-005-000, more particularly described in **Exhibit "A"** attached hereto and expressly made a part of this Contract; together with all buildings and improvements thereon, and including all fixtures and articles of personal property attached to or appurtenant to or used in connection with the Property, together with all rights, benefits, privileges, easements, hereditaments, rights-of-way and other appurtenances thereon or in any way appertaining thereto, including all mineral rights, development rights, air and water rights, riparian and littoral rights, permits, licenses or approvals associated with the real property (collectively, hereinafter referred to as the "**Property**").

b. <u>Intangible Personal Property</u>. To the extent assignable without cost to Seller, all intangible personal property, if any, owned by Seller and related to the Property, shall be assigned by Seller to the CTAC at Closing, including, without limitation: all warranties to which the Seller may have rights appliable to the Property or any portion thereof provided by any manufacturers, designers, and contractors providing materials or performing work on, for, or of the Property, or any portion thereof; and plans and specifications and other architectural and engineering drawings; surveys, engineering reports and other technical information relating to the Property; and any governmental permits, approvals, and licenses (including pending applications, if any)(collectively, the "Intangible Personal Property"). As used in this Contract, the Property, and the Intangible Personal Property together shall be referred to herein collectively as the "Property".

4. **PURCHASE PRICE; DISBURSEMENT**. Seller agrees to sell and the CTAC agrees to purchase the Property for the sum of One Million Nine Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$1,950,000.00); subject to adjustments, credits, and prorations as set forth herein (the "**Purchase Price**").

a. Within 5 business days of the Effective Date of this Contract, CTC will make a deposit with the Escrow Agent the sum of \$50,000, as good faith deposit for the Property (the **"Deposit"**). Upon the expiration of the Inspection Period (as defined below), the Deposit shall be (i) deemed non-refundable except in the event of an uncured Seller default of failure of a condition precedent to Closing, and (ii) applicable to and credited against the Purchase Price at the Closing, or paid to Seller as liquidated damages as hereinafter provided, all as more fully set forth within this Contract.

b. The balance of the Purchase Price, less any fee, and the Deposit by CTAC prior to closing shall be paid by CTAC at Closing.

5. **DOCUMENTS AND INFORMATION SELLER SHALL PROVIDE**. The Seller shall furnish to the CTAC, within five (5) business days of the Effective Date of this
Contract, the following documents and information relating to the Property, to the extent such items are in the possession or control of Seller:

a. Copies of all title insurance policies, commitments, abstracts, opinions, searches and/or reports for any portion of the Property.

- b. Copies of all Environmental Reports.
- c. Copies of all surveys of any portion of the Property.
- d. Copies of all engineering reports which relate to the Property.

e. Copies of all leases, contracts, options, easements, licenses, mortgages, financing statements, security agreements, judgments, liens, claims of lien, tax assessment records, and all similar documents, known to the Seller, which are then in effect and may reasonably affect the title to the Property or the Seller's ability to convey fee simple title to the Property.

f. A completed Beneficial Interest and Disclosure Affidavit for the Seller as required by §§ 286.23(1), and 380.08(2), Florida Statutes, the form of which is attached hereto as **Exhibit "B"**. Pursuant to §286.23(2), Florida Statutes, the disclosure must be made under oath, subject to the penalties prescribed for perjury.

g. The Seller's social security or Federal Tax ID number.

h. The above-requested documents in (a)-(d) above are collectively, the "Seller Inspection Materials". Notwithstanding the foregoing, the term "Seller Inspection Materials" shall not include any materials that are subject to attorney-client privilege or that constitute attorney work product. During the term of this Contract, to the extent Seller comes into possession of any new Seller Inspection Materials or any Seller Inspection Materials not previously provided to the CTAC, Seller shall promptly notify the CTAC of the same and deliver such Seller Inspection Materials to the CTAC. The CTAC shall be permitted, at the CTAC's cost, to make copies of the Seller Inspection Materials, to the extent Seller is unable to transmit to the CTAC electronic copies of any of the Seller Inspection Materials. The CTAC further acknowledges and agrees that the Seller Inspection Materials will be provided to the CTAC for informational purposes only and that the CTAC shall not be entitled to rely thereon, but shall conduct its own independent inquiry and investigation with respect to the same. Except as otherwise provided in this

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023 Page 4

Page 4 of 31

Contract, neither Seller nor any person representing or acting on behalf of Seller, including without limitation any of Seller's agents or consultants, has made or shall make any representation or warranty, express or implied, written or oral, as to the reliability, accuracy or completeness of any of the Seller Inspection Materials, and none of Seller or any of its employees or agents has or shall have any liability relating to the Seller Inspection Materials or for any errors therein or omissions therefrom; provided, however, notwithstanding the same Seller hereby represents that Seller has no actual knowledge (without any obligation of investigation or inspection) that any of the Seller Inspection Materials provided or to be provided by Seller to the CTAC are inaccurate, misleading, or incomplete. If this purchase and sale transaction does not close for any reason, then the CTAC shall return to Seller all Seller Inspection Materials in the CTAC's possession.

6. **DUE DILIGENCE INSPECTIONS.** The CTAC's due diligence period starts on the Effective Date of this Contract and shall continue for a period of thirty (30) calendar days (the "Inspection Period"). During the Inspection Period, the CTAC may conduct any surveys, surface and subsurface explorations, soil tests, engineering studies, environmental site assessments (provided, however, that absent prior written consent of Seller, CTAC's environmental and soil assessment of the Property shall be limited to a Phase I environmental assessment), and any other tests and investigations of the Property which the CTAC may elect to make to determine whether the Property is suitable, in the CTAC's sole and reasonable discretion, for the CTAC's intended use and development of the Property as a public facility, including administrative offices for CTAC staff; provided, however, that such Inspections shall not unreasonably disturb or interfere with the use or operations of Seller or any tenants. The CTAC may conduct any inspections during the Inspection Period which the CTAC deems necessary to determine to the CTAC's satisfaction the Property's engineering, architectural, environmental properties, including but not limited to building's structural systems, mechanical systems, building envelope, and interior building components; zoning and zoning restrictions; flood zone designation and restrictions; subdivision regulations; soil and grade; availability of access to public roads, water, and other utilities; consistency with local, state and regional growth management and comprehensive land use plans; compliance with all applicable building codes; availability of permits, government approvals and licenses; compliance with American with Disabilities Act; absence of asbestos, soil and ground water contamination; and other inspections that the CTAC deems appropriate to determine the suitability of the Property for the CTAC's intended use and development ("Inspections"); provided, however, that such Inspections shall not unreasonably disturb or interfere with the use or operations of Seller or any tenants.



The CTAC will deliver written notice to Seller prior to the expiration of the Inspection Period of the CTAC's determination of whether or not the Property is suitable in the CTAC's sole and reasonable discretion. The CTAC's failure to comply with this notice requirement will constitute acceptance of the Property in its present "as is" condition. Seller grants to the CTAC, its employees, agents, contractors and assigns, the right to enter the Property at any time during the Inspection Period for the purpose of conducting Inspections; provided, however, that the CTAC, its employees, agents, contractors and assigns enter the Property and conduct Inspections at their own risk; and provided further that such Inspections shall not unreasonably disturb or interfere with the use or operations of Seller or any tenants. Subject to the limitations contained in paragraph 38, the CTAC shall indemnify, defend and hold Seller harmless from and against any losses, damages, costs, claims and expenses of any nature, including attorneys' fees at all levels, and from liability to any person, arising from the conduct of any and all Inspections or any work authorized by the CTAC and this indemnity shall survive the Closing or termination of this Contract. The CTAC will not engage in any activity that could result in a mechanic's lien being filed against the Property without the Seller's prior written consent. In the event this transaction does not close, (a) the CTAC will repair all damage to the Property resulting from the Inspections and return the Property to the condition it was in prior to conduct of the Inspections, and (b) the CTAC will, at the CTAC's expense, promptly transmit to the Seller all reports and other work generated as a result of the Inspections.

If the CTAC determines, in its sole discretion, that the Property is not acceptable to the CTAC, it may terminate this contract by delivering written notice to Seller before the expiration of the Inspection Period of such election. In that event the Parties agree that this Contract shall terminate automatically, the \$50,000 deposit of CTAC shall be returned and other than the costs associated with the inspections addressed in this paragraph, the Parties shall have no further duties or obligations hereunder.

7. **EVIDENCE OF TITLE AND TITLE INSURANCE**. Within twenty (20) days after the Effective Date, the CTAC, at its sole cost and expense, shall obtain the Title Commitment for an ALTA Owner's Title Insurance Policy insuring the marketable record title of the Property from a recognized national title insurance company of CTAC's choice doing business in the Alachua County area. The Title Commitment shall describe the Property, shall be dated later than the Effective Date of this Contract, shall be in the full amount of the Purchase Price, shall have attached legible copies of all instruments referred to therein, and shall otherwise disclose the title to the Property to be good, marketable, and



insurable, subject only to the exceptions set forth in Exhibit "C" attached hereto ("Permitted Exceptions").

CTAC acknowledges that there is currently a month-to-month Tenant (known as Carr, Riggs & Ingram CPAs and Advisors), occupying the Property. The Seller has assured CTAC that this Tenant intends to vacate the Property by October 31, 2023; however, the Parties agree that the Closing will not be contingent upon this Tenant vacating the Property.

8. **SURVEY**. The CTAC may have the Property surveyed during the Inspection Period. If the Survey shows that (a) any encroachments on the Property, or that improvements, if any, on the Property encroach on other lands; (b) the Property is not contiguous to a publicly dedicated right of way; or (c) any other facts that affect the marketability of the title to the Property, then any such facts or matters so shown will constitute a Title Objection (defined below) for purposes of Paragraph 9 herein.

9. **TITLE REVIEW**.

The CTAC shall have until expiration of the Inspection Period (the "Title a. and Survey Review Period") to examine the Survey and Title Commitment and any supporting title documents, and, if the Survey, Title Commitment, or supporting title documents, reveal any encroachments, overlaps, easements, restrictions, covenants, conditions, other title defects or other matters objectionable to the CTAC (hereinafter referred to as the "Title Objections"), to furnish Seller with a written statement of the CTAC's Title Objections ("The CTAC's Title Objection Notice"). Any matters identified in the Title Commitment or the Survey and not objected to by the CTAC as set forth above shall be deemed to be approved by the CTAC, provided, however, the CTAC's failure to provide notice of any Mandatory Cure Items (defined below) shall not be deemed a waiver, the CTAC shall be deemed to have automatically objected to all Mandatory Cure Items, and the CTAC shall not be required to take title subject to any Mandatory Cure Items. In all events Seller shall be required to cure all Mandatory Cure Items. As used herein, the term "Mandatory Cure Item" or "Mandatory Cure Items" means (i) any mortgage, deed to secure debt, deed of trust or similar security instrument encumbering all or any part of the Property, (ii) any mechanic's, materialman's or similar lien (except to the extent resulting from any act or omission of the CTAC or any of its agents, contractors, representatives or employees), (iii) any judgment of record against Seller in the CTAC or other applicable jurisdiction in which the Property is located; (iv) all other liens or encumbrances evidencing monetary obligations of Seller; (v) all matters affecting title which are the result of Seller's voluntary acts occurring after the Effective Date of this

Page 7 of **31**

Seller's Initials **CTAC's Initials**

Contract, to the extent not consented to by the CTAC in writing; and (vii) any other matters that Seller has agreed to cure or satisfy or is otherwise required to cure or satisfy pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

b. If the CTAC furnishes the CTAC's Title Objection Notice within the permitted time, then Seller shall have until seven (7) days after Seller's receipt of the CTAC's Title Objection Notice (the "Seller Title Response Period") in which to indicate to the CTAC which of the Title Objections raised by the CTAC that Seller will cure and those which Seller declines to cure, and if Seller does not respond in writing to the CTAC's Title Objection Notice within the Seller Title Response Period, then Seller shall be deemed to have declined to cure all Title Objections set forth in the CTAC's Title Objection Notice.

If Seller declines to cure any of the Title Objections set forth in the CTAC's c. Title Objection Notice (excluding Mandatory Cure Items, which Seller shall be required to cure in all events), then the CTAC may then do one of the following as the CTAC's sole remedy: (i) accept such Title Objections set forth in the CTAC's Title Objection Notice that Seller has declined to cure in writing (excluding Mandatory Cure Items, which Seller shall be required to cure in all events) as a Permitted Exception, and require Seller to deliver the title to the Property at the Closing subject to such uncured Title Objections (but subject to Seller curing all Mandatory Cure Items and any Title Objections set forth in the CTAC's Title Objection Notice that Seller has agreed to cure), with no reduction in the Purchase Price due to the same; or (ii) terminate this Contract, whereupon this Contract shall be automatically terminated, and all Parties released from further obligation hereunder except for any provision herein which expressly survives termination of this Contract. The CTAC's decision either to accept the Title Objections set forth in the CTAC's Title Objection Notice that Seller has declined to cure in writing as a Permitted Exception or to terminate this Contract shall be made by written notice thereof from the CTAC to Seller within the later of (A) three (3) business days after the CTAC receives written notice from Seller that Seller is declining to cure any of the Title Objections set forth in the CTAC's Title Objection Notice (or three (3) business days after the Seller Title Response Period if Seller fails to respond), or (B) the expiration of the Inspection Period. If the CTAC has not provided Seller with written notice of termination within the period set forth herein, any uncured Title Objections that Seller has declined to cure in writing (excluding Mandatory Cure Items, which Seller shall be required to cure in all events) shall become part of the Permitted Exceptions, and any such objection with respect to the same shall be deemed to have been waived and the CTAC shall be deemed to have elected option (i) above.

If Seller timely elects in writing to cure any of the Title Objections, or if d. Seller is deemed to have agreed to cure all or any of the Title Objections set forth in the CTAC's Title Objection Notice, then Seller shall have until the Closing Date to cure the applicable Title Objections ("Seller's Title Cure Period"), and the Closing Date shall be extended for a period of time, not to exceed sixty (60) calendar days, reasonably necessary to accommodate Seller's efforts to cure such applicable Title Objections. In all events, Seller shall cure all Mandatory Cure Items, and Seller shall use good faith and due diligence to cure the Title Objections it agrees to cure. If any such Title Objections, other than those that will be cured or satisfied at Closing, remain uncured by Seller at the end of Seller's Title Cure Period, then Seller shall give the CTAC written notice of Seller's failure to cure all the Title Objections and describe with specificity in that notice the Title Objections which remain uncured. The CTAC may then do one of the following: (i) accept the uncured Title Objections (excluding Mandatory Cure Items, which Seller shall be required to cure in all events) as Permitted Exceptions, and require Seller to deliver the title to the Property at the Closing subject to such uncured Title Objections with no reduction in the Purchase Price in connection with the same; or (ii) terminate this Contract, whereupon this Contract shall be automatically terminated, the Deposit returned to the CTAC and all Parties released from further obligation hereunder except for any provision herein which expressly survives termination of this Contract and any rights and remedies of the CTAC with respect to Seller defaults as set forth in this Contract. The CTAC's decision either to accept the uncured Title Objections or to terminate this Contract shall be made by written notice thereof from the CTAC to Seller within the later of (A) three (3) business days after the CTAC receives written notice from Seller of the uncured Title Objections, or (B) the Closing Date, and the Closing Date shall be extended to accommodate the CTAC's three (3) day response period described in Subparagraph (C) above, as applicable. If the CTAC has not provided Seller with written notice of termination within the period set forth herein, any uncured Title Objections (excluding Mandatory Cure Items, which Seller shall be required to cure in all events) shall be deemed to be acceptable to the CTAC and shall become part of the Permitted Exceptions, and any objection shall be deemed to have been waived and the CTAC shall be deemed to have elected option (i) above. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, if Seller fails to cure all Mandatory Cure Items and other Title Objections which are the result of Seller's voluntary acts occurring after the Effective Date of this Contract, Seller shall be in default hereunder and the CTAC shall have all rights and remedies available to the CTAC hereunder.

e. If, following the expiration of the Title and Survey Review Period, any new matters appear on any update to the Title Commitment or any update to the Survey that affects the Property, then the provisions of this Paragraph 9 shall apply thereto except the

Seller's Initials **CTAC's Initials**

time period in which the CTAC may object shall expire five (5) days after the CTAC receives said update, and the Seller Title Response Period for the same shall expire three (3) business days thereafter. In addition, if any time periods provided for in this Paragraph 9(e) extend beyond the Closing Date, then the Closing Date shall be extended until a date which is five (5) business days after the last applicable date. Except as may otherwise be expressly permitted under this Contract, Seller shall not permit any new encumbrances on the Property after the Effective Date without the CTAC's prior written consent.

The CTAC's obligation to 10. ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT. purchase the Property is contingent on the CTAC being able to obtain an environmental site assessment of the Property during the Inspection Period, which the CTAC determines, in its sole discretion, to be satisfactory for its intended use and development of the Property. If the results of the environmental site assessment or any Environmental Reports furnished to the CTAC by a third-party consultant or the Seller reveal that any portion of the Property is contaminated or violates applicable federal, state or local laws, ordinances, codes, rules, orders or regulations relating to pollution or protection of the environment or to threatened or endangered species (collectively the "Environmental Defects"), the CTAC shall provide written notice to the Seller of the Environmental Defects prior to the expiration of the Inspection Period. Should the CTAC provide such notice, the Seller shall have 20 days after the date of said notice to elect, in Seller's sole discretion, whether to correct or remove the Environmental Defects. In the event that Seller elects to correct or remove the Environmental Defects within such 20-day period by written notice to CTAC, then the Closing Date shall be extended 70 days after the date of such notice (the "Extended Closing Date"). If the Seller is unable, after reasonable effort, to correct or remove the Environmental Defects that Seller elects to correct or remove within the 70 day time period, or if Seller elects not to correct or remove any Environmental Defects, the CTAC may either: (a) accept the Environmental Defects and close this transaction according to the terms of this Contract no later than the end of the Extended Closing Date, or (b) terminate this Contract by written notice to the Seller, as may be determined and elected by the CTAC Manager without further approval by the Board, whereupon all Parties shall be relieved of all further obligations under this Contract.

11. **CASUALTY LOSS**. In the event any portion of the improvements located on the Property is damaged or destroyed by wind, fire, casualty, disease, or by any other means or act of God, prior to closing, to an extent greater than Thousand and No/100 Dollars (\$100,000.00) in value, then the CTAC, as determined by the CTAC Executive Director, may either: (a) accept such loss and close this transaction according to the terms of this

Page 10 of 31

Seller's Initials **CTAC's Initials**

Contract; or (b) terminate this Contract by written notice to the Seller, whereupon all Parties shall be relieved of all further obligations under this Contract. Seller represents that it has standard casualty and property damage insurance coverage sufficient to cover foreseeable damage to the property in the amount set forth above. Provided, however, if the CTAC proceeds to closing, the Seller shall be obligated to repair all damage to the improvements to the extent covered by insurance, regardless of the amount of such damage or, at the option of the CTAC, Seller shall assign all insurance or condemnation proceeds resulting from the loss or damage to the CTAC.

12. **INSPECTIONS**. The CTAC may perform visual inspections of the Property at any time prior to Closing; provided, however, that such visual inspections shall not unreasonably disturb or interfere with the use or operations of Seller or any tenants.

13. **CLOSING DATE; APPROVALS**. This transaction shall be closed at a date and time mutually agreed upon by the Parties no later than thirty (30) days after the expiration of the Inspection Period (the "**Closing Date**"), as may be extended as provided herein, at or through the offices of the Escrow Agent, unless otherwise provided for herein or agreed to by the Parties in writing. The Executive Director of CTAC has the authority to agree, on behalf of the CTAC, to terminate this Contract, or to extend the Inspection Period, Cure Period, or the Closing Date, without further approval by the CTAC Board.

14. **EXPENSES**. The Parties shall pay closing costs and expenses as follows:

SELLER:

- Documentary stamp tax on the deed of conveyance;
- Preparation of all closing documents necessary to cure title defects; which are not Permitted Exceptions (if any);
- Past due taxes (if any);
- Seller's attorney's fees; and
- Seller's brokerage fees (if any)

CTAC:

- Environmental site assessment costs;
- Survey;
- Owners Title Insurance Policy for the CTAC (including all related search and abstract fees);
- Closing Agent fees (including the preparation of all closing

Page 11 of 31



documents, except those that are necessary to cure title defects and are thus Seller's responsibility);

- Recording costs; and
- CTAC's attorney's fees.

15. AD VALOREM TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS ON THE PROPERTY.

a. For the year of closing, the Seller shall be responsible for and pay at closing all unpaid ad valorem taxes and assessments on the Property relating to the period of time that Seller owned the Property, and to discharge the lien of such ad valorem taxes and assessments relating to the period of time that Seller owned the Property. The Seller may take advantage of all legal procedures for discharging such lien by paying an estimated, prorated amount into escrow with the applicable tax collector(s) as provided by Section 196.295, Florida Statutes, Rule 12D-13.016, Florida Administrative Code and other applicable provisions of law. Seller shall not be responsible for any taxes or assessments incurred after closing. CTAC as a governmental entity is immune from taxation for property it owns.

b. For all years prior to the year of closing, the Seller shall be responsible for and pay at closing all unpaid ad valorem taxes and assessments on the Property, to discharge any and all liens of such ad valorem taxes and assessments.

16. **ASSESSMENTS AND FEES**. The Seller shall fully pay the following at or prior to closing, to the extent relating to the period of time that Seller owned the Property: all unpaid public assessments for street, sidewalk or other improvements, if any; city or county garbage disposal fees, incineration fees, fire service fees, and the like; impact fees payable with respect to the Property; and any other fees or payments due to any governmental authority with respect to the Property.

17. **CLOSING DOCUMENTS**: The CTAC's Executive Director is hereby delegated the authority to execute all closing documents on behalf of the CTAC that are necessary to close this transaction, including but not limited to the HUD-1 Settlement Statement. Except as specifically provided below, the Seller shall deliver or provide the Closing Agent with information necessary to produce the following documents at or prior to closing:

a. An Affidavit of Non-Foreign Status, Notice of Non-Recognition, or Withholding Certificate to establish compliance with the Foreign Investment and Real Property Tax Act of 1980 "FIRPTA". Any such documents executed and delivered by the Seller must comply with the provisions of FIRPTA and any regulations or rules promulgated thereunder. If the Closing Agent or the CTAC has actual knowledge or has received notice that the information contained or representations made in such document(s) is false, or if the document(s) does not otherwise comply with FIRPTA, then the Closing Agent shall withhold 10% - 15% of the amount realized by the Seller and shall remit such amount to the IRS at closing along with the properly completed remittance form.

b. Seller shall furnish a Seller's affidavit, in form reasonably acceptable to the Closing Agent, the title insurance company, and the CTAC, sufficient to remove standard printed exceptions to title in the Owner's Title Insurance Policy regarding (i) rights or claims of Parties in possession; and (ii) mechanic's liens.

c. An affidavit affirming the Seller's representations and warranties listed in Paragraph 23.

d. IRS 1099 Form, if required.

e. Incumbency Certificate, Resolution and Affidavit, in a form acceptable to the Closing Agent, from the Seller if the Seller is not a natural person.

f. Seller shall deliver satisfaction(s), release(s) or estoppel letters from lenders and others holding mortgages or liens on the Property.

g. Seller shall deliver an assignment of all of Seller's rights, title and interest in all development rights, permits, licenses, benefits, consents, or approvals, surveys, soil tests, water, sewer, or other utility capacity verification or reservation, development plans, engineering plans or specifications, tests, reports, studies, appraisals, analyses and similar documents or information.

h. As may be required by the Title Commitment, Seller shall deliver (i) documents, instruments, or other writings executed, drafted. or issued by the City wherein the City does or otherwise confirms it release(s), quit claim(s), renounce(s), or quiet(s) any and all right, title, or interest in the Property; or (ii) such other documentation as may be reasonably needed by the Closing Agent or title insurance company to issue the Owner's Title Insurance Policy without exception for any and all right, title, or interest of the City in and to the Property.



i. Any other documents or information the Closing Agent reasonably requests or requires to complete the transaction.

18. **CONVEYANCE**. At closing, the Seller shall convey fee simple title of the Property to the CTAC by special warranty deed, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances except for the Permitted Exceptions and those matters expressly allowed for herein or otherwise agreed to by the Parties in writing. The CTAC Board authorizes the Executive Director of CTAC to accept liens and encumbrances related to the Property without requiring further approval of the CTAC Board. The deeds of conveyance shall: (1) utilize the "metes and bounds" legal descriptions of the Property; and (2) meet the standards of the Closing Agent and the CTAC as to form. Exclusive possession of the Property shall pass to the CTAC at the time of closing.

19. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE. In all matters relating to this Contract, TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE.

20. **NO ALTERATIONS PRIOR TO CLOSING**. After the Effective Date, the Seller will not, without prior written consent from the CTAC, (i) execute or enter into any lease, contract, option, easement, license, mortgage, financing statement, security agreement, or similar document concerning or affecting the Property, or (ii) materially alter the Property; provided, however, that Seller shall be permitted to engage in routine cleaning, maintenance and repair activities without the necessity of obtaining any consent from CTAC.

21. **GENERAL CONDITIONS TO OBLIGATIONS OF THE CTAC**. The obligations of the CTAC are, at the option of the CTAC, contingent upon these conditions:

a. The representations and warranties made by Seller herein shall be correct statements of fact as said facts exist as of the Closing Date, and at all times between the Effective Date and the Closing Date.

b. All terms, covenants, agreements and provisions of this Contract to be complied with and performed by the Seller on or before the Closing Date shall have been duly complied with or performed.

22. **GENERAL CONDITIONS TO OBLIGATIONS OF THE SELLER**. The obligations of the Seller are, at the option of the Seller, contingent upon these conditions:

a. The representations and warranties made by CTAC herein shall be correct statements of fact as said facts exist as of the Closing Date, and at all times between the Effective Date and the Closing Date.

b. All terms, covenants, agreements and provisions of this Contract to be complied with and performed by the CTAC on or before the Closing Date shall have been duly complied with or performed.

23. **REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND COVENANTS OF SELLER**. The Seller hereby represents, warrants, and covenants to and with the CTAC as follows:

a. To the best of Seller's knowledge and belief, except for those matters that will be discharged at closing, the Seller, and only the Seller, holds fee simple title to the Property and neither the Seller nor any other party has a common law or statutory way of necessity over or across the Property pursuant to §704.01, Florida Statutes.

b. From and after the Effective Date, Seller shall not enter into any contracts, agreements, encumbrances, liens, or other documents or instruments for or regarding the sale, transfer, disposition, assignment, conveyance, encumbrance, lien, pledge, of any Property, or any part thereof or any interest therein, or which may result in any lien or encumbrance with regard to the Property, or any part thereof, or an interest therein, without the prior written consent of the CTAC.

c. The person executing this Contract on behalf of the Seller is fully and duly authorized to do so by Seller, and any and all actions required to make this Contract and the performance thereof legally binding obligations of Seller, have been duly and legally taken. No further consent, authorization or approval of any person or entity is required for Seller to enter into or perform this transaction.

d. Seller has paid (or covenants that it will pay prior to Closing) any and all taxes (excluding taxes not yet due) which have or could become a lien or charge against the Property, subject to the proration therein provided.

e. To the best of Seller's knowledge and belief, except for the liens, encumbrances, or charges against the Property specifically disclosed in this Contract, there are no other liens, encumbrances, unpaid bills to vendors, outstanding obligations or charges (contingent or absolute) in existence against such Seller or any businesses conducted thereon, or any existing undisclosed or unrecorded liens, encumbrances or

Page 15 of 31

Seller's Initials CTAC's Initials

charges, which could adversely affect title to the Property after the Effective Date or the Closing Date, and Seller has no knowledge of any matters pending that could result in a lien against the Property, or in any way substantially adversely affect title to the Property.

f. From and after the Effective Date, Seller will not cause, permit, suffer, or allow any change, modification or alternation to be made to the Property, or any part or portion thereof, or its physical condition without the prior written consent of CTAC; provided, however, that Seller shall be permitted to engage in routine cleaning, maintenance and repair activities without the necessity of obtaining any consent of CTAC.

g. Other than Carr, Riggs & Ingram CPAs and Advisors, there are no leases of the Property, or any portion thereof.

h. To the best of Seller's actual information and belief, during its ownership the Property has never been used for the dumping, disposal, manufacture, handling, transportation, storage, or usage of any toxic or hazardous wastes or materials, and no such toxic or hazardous waste or materials are present on, in, or under the Property. As used herein "hazardous or toxic wastes or materials" shall mean and refer to any substance or matter giving rise to liability or regulations under any federal, state, or local law, statute, regulation, rule or ordinance.

i. To the best of the Seller's actual information and belief, no party or person has ever used the Property as a dump, landfill or garbage disposal site.

j. To the best of the Seller's actual information and belief, the Property presently complies with all applicable environmental laws, rules and regulations.

k. The Seller has no actual knowledge of any previous violations of applicable environmental laws, rules and regulations regarding the Property.

1. The Seller has not received notice from any government agency that the Property violates any federal, state or local laws, ordinances, codes, rules, orders or regulations or that any remedial action is required on the Property.

m. The Seller has no actual knowledge that there are any endangered species (as defined by state or federal law) on the Property.

n. The Seller is not a "foreign person" as that term is defined in 26 U.S.C.A. 1445(f)(3), nor is the sale of the Property subject to any withholding requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Code, including but not limited to 26 U.S.C.A. 1445.

o. Upon closing, sole and exclusive possession of the Property shall transfer to the CTAC and Seller shall turn over the Property in broom clean condition, free of junk, rubbish, trash and debris.

p. To the best of Seller's knowledge and belief, there are no actions, suits or proceedings of any kind or nature whatsoever legal or equitable, actual or threatened, affecting the Property, or any portion thereof, or relating to or arising out of the ownership of the Property, in any court or before or by any Federal, state, CTAC or municipal department, commission, board, bureau, or agency or other government instrumentality.

q. No person, firm or other legal entity other than the CTAC has any right or option whatsoever to acquire the Property or any portion thereof, or any interest therein.

r. The execution and delivery of this Contract and the consummation of the transaction contemplated herein shall not and do not constitute a violation or breach by Seller of any provision of any agreement or other instrument to which Seller is a party or to which Seller may be subject although not a party, nor result in or constitute, to the best of Seller's knowledge and belief, a violation or breach of any judgment, order, writ, injunction or decree issued against Seller.

s. Except as stated in Paragraph 5 above, no representation, warranty or covenant in this Contract, nor any document, certificate or exhibit given or delivered to CTAC pursuant to this Contract, when read singularly or together as a whole, contains any untrue statement of a material fact, or omits a material fact necessary to make the statements contained therein true in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, to the best of Seller's knowledge.

t. Seller is not subject to any bankruptcy proceeding, assignment for benefit of creditors, receivership or similar proceedings and that the conveyance of the Property as set out herein will not result in the Seller becoming bankrupt or insolvent.

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Contract, CTAC hereby expressly acknowledges and agrees that Seller makes no representations or warranties of any kind pertaining to any of the Property to be conveyed by Seller to CTAC, whether express or

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023 Page 17 of 31

implied, including without limitation warranties or representations as to matters of title, use, zoning, tax consequences, physical or environmental conditions, operating history or governmental approvals, merchantability, projections. valuation, marketability. profitability, suitability or fitness for a particular use or purpose, the manner or quality of the construction or materials of the Property, the manner, quality, state of repair or lack of repair of the Property, and the completeness or accuracy of any information or materials provided to CTAC. In the event of Closing, the Property is being sold and accepted by CTAC in "AS IS", "WHERE IS" condition, and "WITH ALL FAULTS" except as expressly set forth in this Contract or in documents to be delivered at Closing pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Except for the warranties and representations expressly made by Seller in this Contract or in documents to be delivered at Closing pursuant to this Contract, Seller expressly disclaims any and all warranties, express or implied, relating in any way to the nature, quality, condition, use, operation or history of the Property, improvements and personal property to be conveyed by Seller to CTAC. CTAC is relying on its own investigation of the Property, and CTAC expressly represents that it has not relied upon and will not rely upon, either directly or indirectly, any representation or warranty of Seller or any agent of Seller except as may be specifically set forth in this Contract.

24. **REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE CTAC**. CTAC hereby represents and warrants to Seller as follows:

a. The person executing this Contract on behalf of CTAC is fully and duly authorized to do so by CTAC, and any and all actions required to make this Contract and the performance thereof legally binding obligations of CTAC, have been duly and legally taken. No further consent, authorization or approval of any person or entity is required for CTAC to enter into or perform this transaction.

b. The execution and delivery of this Contract and the consummation of the transaction contemplated herein shall not and do not constitute a violation or breach by CTAC of any provision of any agreement or other instrument to which CTAC is a party or to which CTAC may be subject although not a party, nor result in or constitute, to the best of CTAC's knowledge and belief, a violation or breach of any judgment, order, writ, injunction or decree issued against CTAC.

c. No representation, warranty or covenant in this Contract, nor any document, certificate or exhibits given or delivered to Seller pursuant to this Contract, when read singularly or together as a whole, contains any untrue statement of material fact, or omits a material fact necessary to make the statement contained therein true in light of the circumstances under which they were made.

25. **CONTINUING REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTIES.** The representations and warranties of the Parties contained herein shall be continuing up to and including the Closing Date and at all times between the Effective Date hereof and the Closing Date, with the same force and effect as though such representations and warranties had been made as of Closing, and shall survive the closing of this transaction and remain in effect and enforceable by the Parties for a period of one (1) year after the Closing Date.

26. **EMINENT DOMAIN**. The Seller has no knowledge of any threatened or pending eminent domain proceedings affecting the Property. In the event eminent domain proceedings are pending (without Seller's knowledge) or instituted after the Effective Date, to acquire all or any part of Property, the Parties agree that:

a. The Seller shall, upon discovery, immediately notify the CTAC of such threatened or pending eminent domain proceedings and provide to the CTAC copies of all written correspondences, pleadings or other papers concerning the eminent domain proceeding as the Seller receives them.

b. The CTAC may either: (i) terminate this Contract by written notice to the Seller, whereupon the Parties shall be relieved of all further obligations under this Contract; or (ii) the CTAC may elect to keep this Contract in full force and effect and assume sole control and direction (including settlement authority) of the eminent domain proceedings. In the event of Closing pursuant to this Contract, the CTAC shall receive the eminent domain award and the Purchase Price shall remain as defined above. The Seller shall execute all assignments or documents as are reasonably necessary to accomplish the same.

27. **REAL ESTATE COMMISSIONS**. Seller and CTAC hereby acknowledge that Perry G. McDonald of Bosshardt Realty Services LLC and Daniel Drotos of Colliers International of Gainesville are the sole brokers either party has dealt with in regards to this transaction and, if CTAC acquires the Property pursuant to this Contract, that said brokers will be compensated by Seller pursuant to a separate listing agreement. Except with respect to the above-identified brokers, Seller and CTAC shall indemnify and hold harmless the other from and against any claim for any real estate sales commission, finder's fee, consulting fee, or other compensation in connection with the sale contemplated hereby and arising out of any act or agreement of such party. The indemnity obligations set forth above in this section shall survive both the Closing of the sale contemplated hereby and any termination of this Contract.

28. **AUTHORITY**. Each party hereby represents and warrants to the other party, which representations and warranties shall be true and shall be deemed to be restated at the closing:

a. Each party has full authority to bind itself to the obligations stated herein, including but not limited to, providing any necessary resolutions or like documents indicating consent and approval.

b. The execution and delivery of this Contract and consummation of the transaction contemplated hereby shall not (i) constitute a default under any instrument, document or obligation to which it is now, or may become a party, or by which it may be bound or affected, or (ii) violate any order, writ, injunction or decree of any court in any litigation to which it is a party.

29. **DEFAULT**.

a. Unless otherwise specified in this Contract, in the event any condition of this Contract is not met by Seller, CTAC has timely given any required notice regarding the condition having not been met by Seller, and the sale contemplated hereby does not close, then the Deposit will be returned in accordance with applicable Florida Laws and regulations.

b. In the event Seller breaches its covenant to convey the Property to the CTAC or otherwise fails to perform its material obligations under this Contract, CTAC may provide Seller with written notice of the same and Seller shall thereafter have five (5) business days in which to cure the same. If Seller is unable or unwilling to cure the alleged default and the purchase and sale hereunder is not closed by reason thereof, CTAC shall have the right to (i) seek specific performance of this Contract, or (ii) terminate this Contract by providing written notice of such termination to Seller, whereupon the Deposit shall be returned to CTAC, and the parties shall have no further rights, duties, liabilities or obligations hereunder, except as expressly set forth herein. To the extent any alleged default involves a default of any of Seller's material representations, covenants or obligations hereunder, then, in the event of the Deposit to CTAC, Seller shall, within ten (10) business days thereafter, pay to CTAC, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, an amount equal to all third party out-of-pocket costs and expenses incurred by CTAC in connection with the transaction

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023 Page 20 of 31

contemplated by this Contract in an aggregate amount not to exceed Fifteen Thousand and 00/100 Dollars (\$15,000.00).

In the event any material representation, covenant or obligation of CTAC c. hereunder should at any time prior to Closing become untrue or unsatisfied, Seller may provide CTAC with written notice of the same and CTAC shall thereafter have five (5) business days in which to cure the same (provided, however, that no such notice and cure period shall be required if the event of default is CTAC's failure to timely close). If CTAC is unable or unwilling to cure the alleged default and the purchase and sale hereunder is not closed by reason thereof, then the Deposit shall be paid to Seller as full liquidated damages for such default by CTAC. It is specifically understood and agreed that payment of the Deposit to Seller, as liquidated damages, is Seller's sole and exclusive remedy hereunder, and Seller is hereby specifically waiving and relinquishing any and all other remedies at law or in equity. The Parties acknowledge that the actual amount of the damages which Seller would sustain as a result of CTAC's breach of this Contract are difficult or impossible to estimate, that the Deposit represents the Parties' best estimate of Seller's damages in the event of such breach, that said stipulated sum is a reasonable preestimate of the probable loss resulting from such a breach, and that payment of the Deposit to Seller is not to be construed as a penalty or forfeiture.

d. In no event shall either party be entitled to any remedies or damages for breach of this Contract except as set forth herein. In no event shall any party be entitled to punitive or consequential damages for the breach of this Contract.

30. **FURTHER ASSURANCES**. The Parties shall execute such further documents and do any and all such further things as may be reasonably necessary to implement and carry out the intent of this Contract.

31. **NOTICES**. Any notice, demand, request, or other communication required or permitted by this Contract or by law shall be in writing and delivered by one of the following methods: (a) delivered in person with signed proof of delivery, (b) delivered by United States certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or (c) delivered by a commercial courier service (such as Federal Express) to the following addresses:

Seller:

Davis Monk & Company Attn: Joseph W. Davis

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 21 of 31



2735 NW 22nd Drive Gainesville, FL 32605

With a copy to:

Withers Harvey, P.A. Attn: Richard I. Withers, Esq. 1120 NW 8th Avenue Gainesville, Florida 32601

CTAC:

Executive Director CTAC 802 NW 5th Av. Ste, 100 Gainesville, Florida 32601

With a copy to:

Sylvia Torres, County Attorney Alachua County Attorney's Office 12 SE 1st Street 2nd Floor Gainesville, Florida 32601

To change or update any of the addresses above, the notifying party shall provide notice of the change in writing to the other party using the methods set out above. Such notice shall be deemed effective as of the date of receipt of such notice by personal delivery or commercial courier service, or the date of receipt or refusal of such notice by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested.

32. **ASSIGNMENT**. This Contract may not be assigned by either party without the written consent of the other party.

33. **PERSONS BOUND**. This Contract shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, legal representatives, successors, and permitted assigns.

34. **ESCROW**. Any Escrow Agent receiving funds or equivalent is authorized and agrees by acceptance thereof to deposit promptly and to hold same in escrow and subject to clearance thereof to disburse same in accordance with the terms and conditions of this

Contract. Failure of clearance of funds shall not excuse performance by the CTAC and may be treated as a default by the CTAC at the option of the Seller. In the event of doubt as to the Escrow Agent's duties or liabilities under the provisions of this Contract, the Escrow Agent may, in agent's sole discretion, continue to hold the funds in escrow until the Parties mutually agree to the disbursement thereof, or until a judgment or a court of competent jurisdiction shall determine the rights of the Parties thereto, or Closing Agent may deposit same with the clerk of the circuit court having jurisdiction of the dispute, and upon notifying all Parties concerned of such action, all liability on the part of the Escrow Agent shall fully terminate, except to the extent of accounting for any items theretofore delivered out of escrow. In the event of any suit between CTAC and Seller wherein the Escrow Agent is made a party by virtue of acting as an escrow agent hereunder, or in the event of any suit wherein Escrow Agent interpleads the subject matter of this escrow, the agent shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney's fees and costs incurred, said fees and costs to be charged and assessed as court costs in favor of the prevailing party. All Parties agree that the Escrow Agent shall not be liable to any party or person whomsoever for misdelivery to CTAC or Seller of items subject to escrow, unless such misdelivery shall be due to willful breach of this Contract or gross negligence on the part of the Closing Agent.

- 35. **ENTIRE AGREEMENT**. This Contract contains all of the agreements, representations and warranties of the Parties hereto with respect to the Property, and supersedes all other discussions, understandings or agreements in respect to the subject matter hereof. All prior discussions, understandings and agreements are merged into this Contract, which alone fully and completely expresses the agreements and understandings of the Parties hereto. This Contract may be amended, superseded, extended or modified only by an instrument in writing referring hereto signed by all Parties.
- 36. **APPLICABLE LAW; VENUE**. This Contract shall be interpreted, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. Sole and exclusive venue shall be in Alachua County, Florida.
- 37. **WAIVER OF RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY**. Each party waives its rights to demand trial by jury.
- 38. **SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY**. The CTAC fully retains all sovereign immunity protections afforded to it as an independent taxing district of the State of Florida. The CTAC waives nothing by entering into this Contract. All claims against the CTAC that are permissible

pursuant to the partial waiver of sovereign immunity set forth in §768.28, Florida Statutes, must strictly comply with the procedures found in §768.28, Florida Statutes.

- 39. **SEVERABILITY**. In the event any portion of this Contract is found to be unenforceable, the remainder of this Contract shall remain in full force and effect if the deletion of such portion shall neither affect the overall intent of this Contract, nor materially impair the benefits negotiated by each party hereunder.
- 40. **CONSTRUCTION**. The provisions of this Contract have been carefully and fully negotiated between the Parties, each of which has relatively equal bargaining power. The terms of this Contract are to be construed in accordance with their fair meaning and intent and are not to be construed against either party merely because such party or its counsel drafted this Contract. In the event a day of performance falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday under the laws of the State of Florida, the day of performance shall be automatically extended to the next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.
- 41. **NO RECORDING OF CONTRACT**. The Parties agree that neither the CTAC nor the Seller shall cause this Contract to be recorded in any public records relating to the Property.
- 42. **COUNTERPARTS**. This Contract may be executed by the Parties hereto individually or in combination, in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be an original, and all of which shall constitute one and the same contract. This Contract may be executed and delivered by facsimile and/or email transmission, with the intention that such facsimile and/or email signature and delivery shall have the same effect as an original signature and actual delivery. Execution of this document may be by digital means and the parties shall be bound by that method.
- 43. **HEADINGS**. The captions and headings contained in this Contract are for reference purposes only, and shall not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation hereof.
- 44. **WAIVER**. No provision of this Contract or any rights hereunder may be waived unless such waiver is in writing and is signed by the party waiving such provision or right. The waiver by one party of the performance of any covenant or condition herein shall not invalidate this Contract, nor shall it be considered to be a waiver by such party of any other covenant or condition herein. The waiver by either or both Parties of the time for performing any act shall not constitute a waiver of the time for performing any other act or an identical act required to be performed at a later time. The exercise of any remedy

provided by law or in the provisions of this Contract shall not exclude other remedies unless they are expressly excluded.

[Signature pages follow]

Page 25 of 31

_____ Seller's Initials

EXECUTED this _____ day of September, 2023, by the following authorized representatives of the Seller.

SELLER:

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of:

DAVIS MONK & COMPANY a Florida general partnership

Witness No 1 Signature

By: _____

Joseph W. Davis

Witness No 1 Print Name

Its: General Partner

Witness No 2 Signature

Witness No 2 Print Name

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF ALACHUA

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of [__] physical presence or [_] online notarization on September ____, 2023, by Joseph W. Davis, as General Partner of Davis, Monk & Company. Said person is [_] personally known to me or [_] produced _____ ______as identification.

(type of identification)

Notary Public – State of Florida

Print Name:

Commission Number:

Commission Expiration Date:

_____, 2023, by the Chair of the **EXECUTED** this 26 day of September Children's Trust of Alachua County, an independent taxing district of the State of Florida, acting within her signature authority as granted by the Children's Trust of Alachua County.

CHILDREN'S TRUST OF ALACHUA COUNTY

ATTEST:

By: <u>Ina Certain</u>, Chair

Ken Cornell 10:37 EDT)

Date: Sep 26, 2023

Ken Cornell Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM

10-CSC Swain (Sep 25, 2023 19:18 EDT)

Counsel for the Children's Trust

EXHIBIT LIST

Exhibit A – Legal Description of Parcel Exhibit B – Beneficial Interest and Disclosure Affidavit Form **Exhibit C – Permitted Exceptions**

Page 27 of 31

Seller's Initials **CTAC's Initials**

EXHIBIT A – Legal Description of Property

TAX PARCEL NUMBER 06107-005-000

A tract of land situated in Section 26, Township 9 South, Range 19 East, City of Gainesville, Alachua County, Florida, said tract of land being more particularly described as follows:

Commence at the Southwest corner of the aforementioned Section 26, Township 9 South, Range 19 East for a point of reference and run North 00°04'48" East, along the West line of said Section 26 and along the centerline of NW 43rd Street, a distance of 1410.00 feet to the intersection of said centerline with the centerline of NW 27th Lane; thence run South 89°55'12" East, along said centerline of N.W. 27th Lane, a distance of 500.00 feet; thence run South 00°04'48" West, a distance of 235.00 feet to a concrete monument and the True Point of Beginning; thence continue South 00°04'48" West, a distance of 180.00 feet to a concrete monument on the Northerly line of NW 25th Place; thence run South 64°10'09" East, along said Northerly line, a distance of 186.83 feet to a concrete monument at the beginning of a curve concave Northwesterly, said curve having a radius of 50.00 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 57°57'20" East, 84.69 feet respectively; thence run Northeasterly with said curve through an arc angle of 115°45'03', an arc distance of 101.01 feet to a concrete monument at the end of said curve; thence run North 00°04'48" East, along the West line of NW 40th Street, a distance of 216.14 feet to a concrete monument; thence run North 89°55'12" West, a distance of 240.00 feet to the True Point of Beginning.

Page 28 of 31

Seller's Initials

EXHIBIT B – Beneficial Interest and Disclosure Affidavit Form

AFFIDAVIT OF DISCLOSURE OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

STATE OF ______ COUNTY OF ______

Before me, the undersigned authority, personally appeared who was sworn and makes the following statements:

1. Affiant has personal knowledge of the facts contained herein.

2. Affiant makes this affidavit concerning the following described property (the "**Property**") located in Alachua County, Florida which is being sold and conveyed to the Children's Trust of Alachua County, Florida, an independent taxing district of the State of Florida:

See Exhibit "A" attached hereto.

3. The Property is owned by ______ (the "**Owner**"). Affiant is an Authorized Person of the Owner.

4. I make this affidavit pursuant to the entity disclosure requirements listed in §286.23, Florida Statues concerning real property being conveyed to a public agency.

5. The following are the names and addresses of all parties having any beneficial interest in the Owner:

Contract to Purchase Real Property v04282023

Page 29 of 31

_____Seller's Initials - CTAC's Initials Further Affiant Sayeth Naught.

DATED: _____

By:_____

Printed Name:

SW	ORN	TO,	SUBSCRIBED	AND	ACKNOWLEDGED	before	me	on
			, by					
who is \Box pe	rsonall	y know	In to me or \Box who l	has produ	iced			as
identification	on.							

Sign:_____

 $\{S E A L\}$

Print: _____

EXHIBIT C – Permitted Exceptions

"<u>Permitted Exceptions</u>" shall mean: (i) zoning and other regulatory laws and ordinances affecting the Property; (ii) items created by or through CTAC, and the exceptions to title approved by CTAC during the Inspection Period: (iii) any matters of record as of the Effective Date which were not objected to by CTAC in the CTAC's Title Objection Notice; (iv) any matters of title to which CTAC objected in the CTAC's Title Objection Notice but for which Seller has indicated (or is deemed to have indicated) that it will take no curative action; and (v) any matters which would be disclosed by an accurate survey and inspection of the Property.

Page 31 of 31

Seller's Initials _____ CTAC's Initials



IMPACT PAPER:

OCTOBER 1, 2022 – JULY 31, 2023

World Health Organization (WHO) promotes newborn home visitation as an effective strategy to deliver newborn care and improve newborn survival. A single in-home visit by a nurse offers parents useful information about existing community services and resources, provides parents with an opportunity to ask questions regarding their infant's health needs, and identifies families or infants in need of greater assistance. In addition, offering services in home has a number of advantages. It allows the nurse to assess the safety of the infant's living environment and to work with parents in an individualized way to improve parent-infant interactions. Furthermore, newborn home visiting can connect high-risk families to on-going home visitation programs, which have been found to produce significant and substantial impacts on parenting behavior and child health and well-being.

NewboRN Home Visiting was developed following an evidence-based model:

- ✓ Greater community connections
- ✓ Better utilization of higher quality childcare
- ✓ Higher-quality parenting behaviors
- ✓ Enhanced home environments
- ✓ Improved mother (and father) mental health
- ✓ Reduced emergency medical care for infants
- ✓ Return on Investment

Step 1: Family Partner visits new mom, family and baby in hospital

- Family Partner:
 - Develops connection with family in the hospital
 - Educates on resources in community
 - Addresses urgent needs (car seat, diapers, mental health, support services)
 - Explains NHVP and obtains consent for nurse to conduct visit
- What impacts our ability to engage with family and baby:
 - Baby in NICU
 - o Infant death
 - Out of county adoption
 - DCF removal

• Reasons declined the program:

- Participated in the program in the past and felt they already learned a lot
- Already have other children; this is not their first child
- Too busy to commit to a program
- o Feel confident they have the support and resources they need
- Family has medical background or is a medical professional and doesn't feel the need for additional support
- Nervous about having someone they do not know coming to their home

- Current living situation; examples:
 - Living with family or friend as a guest in their home and didn't feel comfortable, but would contact to enroll if living situation changed
 - Desire to move out of their current living situation and not sure where they will be (ex: don't want roommates, want to be closer to family)

• Reasons accepted the program:

- Participated with previous pregnancy and had a positive experience
 - Families have even requested the same nurse conduct the visit
- Want mom and baby to be checked on by a medical professional
 - Want to be proactive about resolving any issues
 - Visit is free of charge
- First time parents wanting parenting education and support
- Need for educational resources on infant safety (safe sleep, car seat safety, home safety, etc.)
- Need for support with resources due to lack of basic needs
- Nervous about breastfeeding and want support
- Convenience of being seen in their own home
 - Not having reliable transportation
 - Transportation is difficult with multiple young children
- o More comfortable talking to someone in their home about mental health concerns
- o Do not have family or a support system to help once they get home
- Bi-lingual family partner and nurse

		How Much #1: (Goal = 1700) How Well #1:	How Much #2: (Goal = 1105) How Well #2:	
Contract		(Goal = 70%) Families Visited	(Goal = 65%) Consented to	
Year	Births	in the Hospital	Participate	Comments
		•	•	
22-23	2,038	1,328 (65%)	876 (66%)	Lost both full-time family partners due to
(Oct – Jul)				low salary. New family partners have been
				hired. NF credentialing process takes
Annual	2,446	1,594 (proj.)	1,051 (proj.)	months. Nurses are filling in at hospital and
Proj.	(proj.)			conducting home visits/assessments.
				Instability with weekend family partners. We
				have hired a part-time family partner that
				works more than weekends to provide
				program assistance in hopes that this
				provides stability to the weekend coverage.
21-22	2,628	1,854 (71%)	1,215 (66%)	Instability with weekend family partners
20-21	2,417	1,375 (58%)	768 (56%)	COVID
19-20	2,576	1,240 (48%)	773 (61%)	COVID

Contract Year	How Much #3: (Goal = 720)	How Well #3: (Goal = 65%)		
	# Completed Assessments	% Completed Assessments		
22-23 (Oct – Jul)	535	61%		
Annual Proj.	642 (proj.)			
21-22	736	61%		
20-21	375	49%		
19-20	423	56%		

Step 2: Nurse conducts home visit and assessments

Conducted visits with homeless families, residents of Peaceful Paths and residents of the MIST program at Meridian.

• Training for nurses

- Interconcpetion Care: family planning, birth spacing, health and well-being
- Safe Baby
- Substance exposed newborns
- Child passenger safety technicians
- Basic Life Support (BLS)
- o Perinatal mental health
- Certified Lactation Consultant
- Nurse Advanced Certification in Caring for Infants
- Nurse Advanced Certification in Maternal Care

• Health assessment on baby

- Better Off #2: <u>100%</u> of participants voice understanding of Infant Health Needs as measured by nurse assessment (Goal = 80%).
- Better Off #3: <u>100%</u> of participants voice understanding of Infant Safety as measured by nurse assessment (Goal = 80%).
- Better Off #4: <u>100%</u> of participants voice understanding of Environmental Safety as measured by nurse assessment (Goal = 80%).
- Safe Sleep
 - 100% of families received safe sleep education
 - 40 families that did not have a safe place for their baby to sleep were provided a pack n play
 - 36 families were provided fitted sheets
 - 107 families provided sleep sacks
- Car Seat Checks
 - 100 car seat checks conducted
 - 18 car seats provided
- Home Safety Check
 - Home safety checklist completed with each of the 535 families
 - 30 First aid kits provided
 - 300 Safety outlet plugs provided
 - 30 Cabinet locks provided
- Newborn care
 - 181 thermometers provided to families that did not have a thermometer
 - 10 Bulb syringes provided
 - 200 Diaper rash ointment provided

- Identify Medical Concerns
 - Illness
 - Weight concerns
 - Heart murmur
 - Jaundice
 - Umbilical Care
- Parent-child interaction and brain development
 - 128 developmental toys provided to families
- 100% of participants interviewed had their infants complete his/her 1st well-check appointment
- o 100% of participants interviewed had their infants receive his/her immunizations

• Health assessment on mom

- Better Off #1: <u>100%</u> of participants voiced understanding of Maternal Health Needs as measured by nurse assessment (Goal = 80%).
- Identify Medical Concerns
 - Checks mothers blood pressure
 - Identified cases of postpartum preeclampsia resulting in immediate hospitalization (one of the leading causes of maternal mortality)
 - Checks incision for infection and educates on proper care
 - Checks for pain and fever
- Conduct Edinburgh Postpartum Depression Screening
 - Identified severe cases of postpartum depression resulting in client receiving services through a perinatal partial hospitalization program and/or intensive outpatient program
- o Provide breastfeeding support to moms who are having challenges with baby latching and thriving
 - 202 families were provided breastfeeding supplies
- 100% of participants interviewed completed their postpartum checkup; according to ACOG, as many as 40% of women do not attend a postpartum visit
- Educated on family planning and birth spacing to reduce preterm births (Alachua County has a March of Dimes grade of an F on the 2022 Preterm Birth Report Card)

• Father Involvement (English and Spanish)

- Depression Screening and referrals for mental health counseling
- Father Folder provided to 226 fathers (42% of families)
 - Bonding with Your Baby
 - Safe to Sleep Dad Infographic
 - Dad Tips
 - Adjusting to Being a New Dad
 - Be there... Be a Dad!
- Referral to T.E.A.M. Dad for ongoing parenting support

• Teen Focused Materials (English and Spanish)

- o TAP Brochure
- Teen Parents, You're Not Alone
- Young Dads Tip Sheet
- Young Adolescent Birth Control Guide
- Am I In A Healthy Relationship (for Teens)
- o GED Alachua County Information

• Welcome Baby Bags (English and Spanish)

- Indestructible book
- NHVP onesie or burp cloth
- Parent magazine
- Poison Control Information
- Saving Smiles Dental Care flyer
- o **2-1-1**
- Peaceful Paths
- Family Planning Clinic
- Baby Shots
- o WIC
- NHVP folder
 - Developmental Milestones
 - Urgent Maternal Warning Signs
 - Healthy vs Unhealthy Foods
 - Alachua County Perinatal Mental Health
 - Postpartum Depression Healthy Start Tip Sheet
 - Home Safety Checklist Healthy Start Tip Sheet
 - Infant Safety Healthy Start Tip Sheet
 - Coping with Crying Healthy Start Tip Sheet
 - Help from Friends and Family
 - How Long Should You Wait Before Getting Pregnant Again?
 - Birth Control Guide
 - What Does a Safe Sleep Environment Look Like?
 - Better Sleep for You and Your Baby
 - Breastfeeding Your Baby Healthy Start Tip Sheet
 - Bottle Feeding Like Breastfeeding
 - Formula Feeding
 - Feeding Your Baby in the First Year
 - Tummy Time to Walking
 - Creating a Loving Bond with Your Baby

Step 3: Nurse and Family Partner ongoing support, case management and referrals

- Families are frequently contacting the nurse for weeks/months after the visit asking questions and for advice
- How Much #4: <u>482</u> families identified as not being in a home visiting program were referred to home visiting coordinated intake and referral (i.e., Connect); (Goal = 600).
 - Programs include: Healthy Start, Healthy Families, Parents as Teachers, Nurse-Family Partnership, T.E.A.M. Dad
- How Well #4: <u>95%</u> of families identified as not being in a home visiting program were referred to home visiting coordinated intake and referral (i.e., Connect); (Goal = 90%).
- Community Referrals

Community Referrals				
Connect-Home Visiting	482			
Mental Health	52			
WIC/Food stamps/Asst.	51			
Childcare	18			
Lactation consult	61			
Financial Assistance	28			
Housing/Rent, Elec Asst.	6			
Diapers	127			
CPR	330			
Transportation	6			
ESOL	19			
Medicaid	11			

• Medical Referrals

Medical Referrals			
Mother - High Blood Pressure			
Mother - Rash			
Mother - High Mental Health Risk			
Mother - Incision Care			
Mother - Blood Clot			
Infant- Illness			
Infant- Weight Concerns			
Infant- Heart Murmur			
Infant- Jaunice			
Infant- No Stool			
Infant- Umbilical Cord			

- Satisfaction Survey response rate = 39% (187 responses)
 - How Well #5: <u>100%</u> of parents/caregivers who received home visit that reported being satisfied with home visiting program as measured by satisfaction survey (Goal = 85%).
 - 96% of families stated that the NewboRN Home Visiting Program was helpful.
 - 100% of families stated that they would recommend the NewboRN Home Visiting Program to a friend.
 - o 100% of families felt the information they received was helpful.
 - See Attachment 1 for comments from participants.
- Impact Interview responses (11 interviews completed)
 - 100% of participants interviewed felt that participation in the NHVP has given them more confidence as a parent.
 - 100% of participants interviewed felt that participation in the NHVP has eased their stress about parenting a newborn.
 - o 100% of participants interviewed felt that participation in the NHVP initiated breastfeeding.
 - At 3 months of age, 82% of participants infants are still eating breastmilk. 18% are formula only.
 - What did you learn from participating in the NHVP?
 - How to efficiently pump to increase my milk supply.
 - Caring for incision
 - Help with breastfeeding, tummy time and help finding a therapist.
 - How to take care of my baby and it eased my concerns about being a new parent
 - Which bottles are better for breastfed babies, how to burp, tummy time, etc. The nurse answered all of our questions and took her time with us. I wish everyone could experience this program.
 - I learned how to breastfeed by son and his dad learned how to bottle feed him. He was not latching or taking bottles and the nurse came and showed us how to help him eat safely and comfortably. The nurse taught my husband how to hold, feed, change, and swaddle baby so I could get some rest.
 - Car seats, Dolly Parton Imagination Library, breastfeeding
 - Car seat installation
- Greater Good Video Link: <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=W41tdjQvmll</u>
 - \circ $\;$ Includes participants that share about their experience with the program.
- Letters of Support from UF Health, HCA Florida North Florida, All About Women Obstetrics and Gynecology, Women's Group of North Florida Attachment 2.

Date	Time	Location	Moms	Dads	Total Attendees
10/14/2022	11:00AM	Millhopper Library	9	5	14
12/8/2022	11:00AM	Millhopper Library	9	5	14
2/10/2023	11:00AM	Millhopper Library	12	4	16
4/14/2023	11:00AM	Millhopper Library	7	5	12
6/16/2023	11:00AM	Library Partnership	5	3	8
7/27/2023	11:00AM	Millhopper Library	11	4	15
	Total Attendees			26	79

Infant CPR and Infant Safety Community Classes

- Infant CPR and Infant Safety Class Participants Survey Results (49 responses total)
 - 1. How would you rate the event?
 - a. Excellent = 94% (46)
 - b. Very Good = 6% (3)
 - c. Good = 0%
 - d. Fair = 0%
 - e. Poor = 0%
 - 2. How would you rate the trainer for this event?
 - a. Excellent = 94% (46)
 - b. Very Good = 4% (2)
 - c. Good = 2% (1)
 - d. Fair = 0%
 - e. Poor = 0%
 - 3. What did you like about the infant safety and CPR class?
 - a. Hands on training practicing on the mannequins
 - b. Information was well organized and useful
 - c. The doll was awesome. The clicking and lights really show you if you are performing CPR correctly.
 - d. Should be mandated as a required course prior to hospital discharge.
 - e. The ladies seemed very knowledgeable, prepared and eager to answer all questions.
 - f. Real life scenario examples and the practice was really great for building some muscle memory.
 - g. I liked how approachable the instructors are and how clear the instruction was. The mannequins were very helpful too. They provided instantaneous feedback.
 - h. Having a NICU nurse teach this is helpful, since she spoke from experience.
 - 4. What did you dislike about the infant safety and CPR class?
 - a. 43 responded "nothing" or "NA"
 - b. After work hours may have been more convenient, but we were able to make this work.
 - c. Trainer was repetitive at some points.
 - d. Some of the structure could have been better.
- e. Need to set a specified time for the class to do compressions so the instructor can talk without interruption.
- f. More emphasis on choking would be nice.
- 5. How likely is it that you would recommend infant safety and infant CPR class to a friend or family member?
 - a. 100% indicated that they would recommend
- 6. Is there anything else you would like to share about the infant safety and infant safety class?
 - a. I hope the program continues as very helpful.
 - b. Liked how they shared stories.
 - c. Nurses are so warm and genuine!
 - d. I love that the County is doing this. This is such an important topic that too many parents and care givers do not know how to do it.
 - e. Thank you for this invaluable class.
 - f. Just thankful this exists.
 - g. It would be good if it was more frequent.
 - h. I appreciate this program!
 - i. More advertisements to reach other moms.
 - j. This is very helpful! I'm grateful!

Outreach and Partnerships

- Florida's Healthy Babies program at the Alachua County Health Department provides items for families.
 - Breastfeeding supplies: manual breast pumps, storage bags, Boppy pillows, lanolin cream, etc.
 - Child care items: diaper cream, thermometers, and infant developmental items such as tummy time pillows and books.
- Prenatal Care Providers: conducts outreach to OB offices on an ongoing basis to update providers of benefits for their patients to enroll in NVHP and updates on what program can offer.
- Hospitals: conducts in-service visits with hospital staff (i.e., NICU, Mother-Baby unit, Lactation, Nurses) to educate them on the benefits of NHVP for their patients.
 - Nurse Supervisor visits with families in the NICU who are enrolled in NHVP to answer questions about NHVP, see how things are going, how infant is progressing, and assess parent's needs.
- Pediatricians: conducts outreach presentations on the NHVP program and how to complete referrals. This has resulted in direct referrals from pediatricians to support their patients with education and other assistance.

Demographics on Families Served





Cause of Death	Alachua County		Florida	
	Count	Rate	Count	Rate
Infant Death 2021*				
Traumatic Brain Injury	0	0.0	13	6.1 per 100,000
SIDS	1	0.4 per 1,000	65	0.3 per 1,000
Unintentional	0	0.0	88	0.4 per 1,000
Suffocation and				
Strangulation				
Unintentional	0	0.0	77	0.4 per 1,000
Suffocation and				
Strangulation in Bed				
Infant Death 2022***				
SUIDS**	0	0.0		
Maternal Death 2021*				
Maternal Deaths	0	0.0	85	39.3 per 100,000

MCH Indicator Data Alachua vs Florida

*Source: Florida Charts

**Sudden unexpected infant death (SUID) is a term used to describe the sudden and unexpected death of a baby less than 1 year old in which the cause was not obvious before the investigation. SUIDs includes sudden infant death syndrome (SIDS), accidental suffocation in a sleeping environment, and other deaths from unknown causes.

***Preliminary data from infant death records Healthy Start of North Central Florida has received to date.

Desired Impact Achieved

- ✓ Parents/caregivers will be introduced to the "system of care" that exists in Alachua County for families with young children
- ✓ All parents/caregivers will be offered this universal Newborn Home Visiting Program
- ✓ Those parents/caregivers who agree to receive ongoing home visiting services will be part of the "continuum of care" that is currently offered through the Coordinated Intake and Referral Program being implemented through the Healthy Start of North Central Florida in collaboration with more than 15 community partners
- ✓ Reduced hospitalizations and use of emergency care
- ✓ Provides the sense that the community (Alachua County residents) cares for their families
- ✓ Friends in other communities or states do not have this program so this shows how much the community cares about families with young children
- ✓ Saves babies and mothers' lives
- ✓ Gives more confidence to parents and can ease their stress
- ✓ Provides answers to parents, because every child is different
- ✓ Everyone in the community supports "making sure that every baby is a healthy baby"

Attachment 1 – Satisfaction Survey Comments

- 1. Lindsay was INCREDIBLE!!!!!!!
- 2. What an amazing and supportive program! We have recommended to all of our expecting friends
- 3. Cara was absolutely wonderful. She was so knowledgeable and shared some very helpful information!
- 4. Diana was amazing! She had so much good info and amazing resources, which helped so much as new parents. We felt so reassured by her visit and would highly recommend this to friends!
- 5. I really appreciate all the helpful information and time spent going over everything in detail. Sandee made me feel confident in caring for my child. All of the materials she offered were unexpected but so appreciated too. Thank you
- 6. Diana was awesome! Provided an abundance of reassurance, advice & resources. Signed up for imagination library. Cpr class, & she gave info about mental health, la leche league & sleep recs. She was so pleasant to talk to, and flexible with scheduling to meet our needs. Would absolutely give her a 10/10 and rec to anyone in the future.
- 7. Amazing visit thank you so much
- 8. To say Diana was amazing, would be an understatement! She truly went above and beyond. She is so kind, engaging, and informative and helpful. You can tell she loves what she does, and as a first time mom I couldn't be more thankful for her visit.
- 9. I love that the nurse comes to our home. Makes life a whole lot easier!
- 10. Cara was great and thorough. The initial visit in the hospital was confusing because it felt almost like solicitation. However, I would not have gotten around to signing up without the in person visit. Maybe wait till the day of discharge for moms to process everything.
- 11. Cara was great! Very informative & helpful! Great to have any extra assessment on myself and my baby.
- 12. Wonderful visit. All questions and concerns addressed professionally, with care, and with tips. Friendly and patient with me. Sandee helped me build confidence in my first time experience as a mom and was amazing at including grandma and dad in education
- 13. Wonderful program, so glad that we were able to learn about NewboRN and receive a home visit. It was super helpful!!
- 14. Diana is such an amazing person and was very helpful. She made me feel more confident as a breastfeeding mom struggling with cluster feeding. She was attentive and thorough. I felt like she listened and was unassuming.
- 15. The newborn RN program is absolutely fantastic. I would recommend the service to anyone who has given birth, and feel very fortunate that it was available to me.
- 16. Invaluable program. Huge asset to Gainesville
- 17. Cara was extremely knowledgeable and helpful! Answered all of my questions! Her expertise was invaluable to us! I really appreciated all of the help! She was so kind and warm and comforting. I can't rave enough about her and this program!
- 18. Sandee was an amazing help and resource ! Very knowledgeable and friendly!
- 19. Thank you Cara, you are amazing!
- 20. Cara was wonderful!
- 21. I learned a lot of useful information I did not know about newborn care
- 22. Cara was super helpful in answering my questions and providing pointers on everything from breast feeding to baby care and safety, and filtering what is normal vs where I should be concerned. As a first time

mom this program is a fantastic resource to help adapt what is taught in baby classes to real life, because every baby is different!

- 23. Amazing program
- 24. ABSOLUTELY AMAZING SERVICE AND RESOURCE. Keep it up! THANK YOU!!!
- 25. Its really excellent program.
- 26. Cara was very informative and helpful!
- 27. The visit was amazing. Cara is great. We got so much useful information and a it's been a huge relief to learn about all the things we've been doing right. I hope all new moms take advantage of this program.
- 28. Helpful, and provided reassurance, as well as resources
- 29. I hope they can reach more people! This was very helpful!!
- 30. Great program
- 31. Cara was lovely and thorough with both her assessment and information sharing. It was a lovely surprise to have so much 1:1 time and support from a health care professional- and so convenient to have the help in our home! Cara certainly went above and beyond during the time she spent with us to make sure everyone is happy, healthy, and set up for a good newborn experience- any new mom will be better off after a visit from her. *Please feel free to use this as a testimonial on the website.
- 32. She was great, very helpful and sweet
- 33. Cara was fantastic and very friendly. Her visit was so helpful. It was really great to have some time one on one with someone like Cara with her expertise who could answer all our questions in a relaxed setting (our home). I would recommend this to any family with a newborn.
- 34. This was SO helpful especially because my husband and I are new parents and need all the help and advice we can get. When we were at the hospital, we joked that we wished that one of the nurses could come home with us and help. That's exactly what Sandee did! Sandee answered all our questions and gave us some wonderful tips and info about baby's eating, car seat, breast feeding, and more! I wish all new parents in the country had access to this program.
- 35. Cara was so helpful and learn a lot from her. thank you
- 36. Cara was warm, considerate, and incredibly helpful.
- 37. Cara was amazing! We had such a great experience with her, and really appreciated her wealth and wide range of knowledge to answer our first-time parent questions.
- 38. Cara was wonderful ! Would absolutely recommend her and newboRN to other families. She deserves a bonus or a raise for how she goes above and beyond !
- 39. Satisfied
- 40. The home visiting is very helpful for me sandee did a good job
- 41. Sandee was awesome! So helpful. What a valuable program!
- 42. Cara was amazing! She was able to answer all my questions and provide us with tons of helpful information for ourselves and new baby.
- 43. It was great and helpful!
- 44. Great program! Really helpful information provided. I'm so happy I got to be part of it!
- 45. An amazing service, we feel more confident, more supported, Cara shared so much knowledge and was so gentle, helpful and patient with our learning. An invaluable service. I am struggling with post partum baby blues, this type of service really helps me feel like things will be okay.
- 46. Diana was lovely and I learned so much and was reassured that both baby and I are doing just fine!
- 47. This is really helpful
- 48. thank you from your service.

- 49. This is so valuable! It was nice to have someone to chat with about all things postpartum
- 50. This program is so valuable, we learned a lot of new information, and it was so great to be able to ask questions to someone so friendly and knowledgeable!
- 51. Very nice program especially coming to hone and providing service.
- 52. It's was a very nice and pleasant visit, she helped me with a lot.
- 53. This was the most informative visit I have received since the brith of my child. Cara was thorough in her responses and used information unique to my family to provide suggestions and strategies. I did not want her to leave!
- 54. Thank you, Cara! We are grateful for your visit and all of the helpful information and resources. And we appreciate you taking your time with us and making sure all of our questions were answered.
- 55. Cara is really helpful and kind. I wish I could have her come to my house to help with lactation in general!!
- 56. Super duper helpful and relieved me and my husband of concerns. Was also nice to have my newborn weighed
- 57. Cara was on time and we could tell she was very passionate about her job! She was very informative and caring in assessing the health of our newborn, me, and checking in with how my husband was doing too, something no one had really touched on until this visit.
- 58. The Newborn home visit was the greatest help I have received during both my pre and postnatal care. I appreciated all the time Ms. Sandee took to explain different newborn care and postpartum care for me. She was beyond helpful in addressing all questions and concerns. She also checked my car seat which has put my mind at ease knowing that I had followed the manual correctly. She was beyond kind and extremely suportive in providing all kinds of resources. Overall super beyond grateful that I had opted in the program and wish I had been referred to it earlier to understand it's mission. Overall a 10/10 experience and will be sure recommending all my friends to it
- 59. I loved the program, the visit was very helpful, we learned a lot and had the opportunity to ask so many questions. Cara was amazing!
- 60. Super helpful and I feel so much more confident now. Highly recommend
- 61. She was amazing and she helped me
- 62. It is really good 👍
- 63. Cara was extremely helpful and knowledgeable on a lot of important topics. She was very thorough and easy to talk to. I would recommend her for any first time parent!
- 64. It's really helpful
- 65. Cara was a wealth of information. Even as second-time parents, this program is extremely beneficial and I would recommend it to everyone with a newborn.
- 66. Sandee was very friendly and gave me alot of helpful information
- 67. Great program and loved the in home visit!
- 68. The information I receive from the session was very informative. Thanks for the support it helps me a lot
- 69. Diana is amazing! She is empathetic, caring, and knowledgeable. We found the home visit to be very helpful
- 70. thank you so much Cara!! I really appreciated the tips for breastfeeding and watching me breastfeed and adjusting me. After you adjusted me and baby, I felt more comfortable and no pain in my breast.
- 71. Sandeep was great. Answered any and all questions I had and had a wonderful personality. Would recommend to anyone
- 72. Wonderful program!! Sandee was perfect for us post NICU visit and since she was there our BF journey has gotten 10x better

- 73. Lindsey was very polite and helpful.
- 74. All of the help and assistance was appreciated so much! Everyone should know more about this.
- 75. Diana was wonderful
- 76. Amazing ! Cara was amazing , i truly appreciate her and the program. Even with being a 2nd time mommy it was sooooo helpful .
- 77. This is a wonderful program with great resources and it is a relief to know it is available to new families in Alachua. Sandee was great and we are so appreciative of the information/resources she provided.
- 78. Great program! Will recommend to all moms!
- 79. Great program. Friendly RN. Amazing resources
- 80. Cara was amazing and went above and beyond when we posed any questions to her.
- 81. Cara has been amazing. This is such a great program. Thank you!!
- 82. Great resource to have
- 83. Cara was amazing. Before I was able to set up my appointment, she still gave me tons of advice on how to get through the really rough first week I was having. At my appointment two weeks later, she answered all my questions and gave me some really great info.
- 84. super great and helpful!! wish there can be more sessions, not just one!
- 85. It is truly a great program!!! I would love for it to be more than one visit but I do plan on continuing home visits with healthy families or healthy start. Cara is amazing
- 86. love the program !
- 87. Phenomenal program. We appreciated so much as first time parents having an in home visit from someone with such experience and knowledge. Thank you Cara!!
- 88. Diana was awesome and shared the information.
- 89. Nice information that I wouldn't have known if it was not for the program
- 90. Loving this Program
- 91. Very informative and helpful
- 92. Such a wonderful resource for new parents!
- 93. Sandee was awesome! She was very helpful
- 94. This program should be advertised more to the newly parents. This is an invaluable help for all this county residence. Ms. Sandee has been wonderful with our family; specially with our new born. She is full of knowledge. It was amazing to have her come to our home; answering so many of our questions. She corrected our mistakes and provided with guidance. She spent a lot of time with the baby checking on him. Sandee showed us how to set up the car seat properly. Because of her, we feel more comfortable taking our child with us in our vehicles.
- 95. Sandee was amazing
- 96. Being a new mom can be scary and lonely but Sandee made me feel less alone and gave me some awesome resources.
- 97. Cara was very helpful and pleasant to work with on our visit. She referred us to community services which we will be utilizing.
- 98. Thank you so much for all your great help and advice! We really appreciated the feeding demonstration, especially. Cara's demeanor was excellent and she helped us feel more confident as first time parents.

Attachment 2 – Letters of Support



UF Health Shands

1600 SW Archer Road Gainesville, FL 32610 UFHealth.org

Dear Children's Trust of Alachua County-

The UF Health Mother Baby Unit submits this letter in strong support of the NewboRN Home Visiting Program. The UF Health Mother Baby Unit focus of care is supporting the family as they transition to life after delivery. There are multiple changes in the newborn, the mother, and the family dynamic that occur in the first week of life. This can be a very high-risk time for complications and frequent follow up is extremely important during this period to support a successful transition from the hospital. As mothers and infants are no longer in the hospital during this period, the follow-up frequently cannot occur in a timely fashion due to various reasons. This is where the NewboRN Home visiting program steps in to fill the gap.

The mission of the NewboRN Home Visiting Program is to improve the health, safety, and future of all babies born in Alachua County through coordinated efforts. These efforts have greatly impacted the families we serve. There have been multiple times over the past year where a mother was readmitted and treated due to blood pressure findings during the NewboRN home visit. We have also treated infants for weight loss, concerning jaundice levels, and various other issues that were brought to the attention of a provider as a result of the NewboRN home visit.

In addition, the NewboRN Home Visiting Program provides supplies, education, and skills training to the families to meet the mission as well. Many times, mothers of infants in the Neonatal Intensive Care Unit will feel they need CPR training because of their newborn's situation; thankfully, the NewboRN Home Visiting Program can provide this and many other skills. The program has also provided breastfeeding support, pack n plays, and car seats to families that are in need.

Here at the UF Health Mother baby Unit we fully support and are excited to recommend the services of the NewboRN Home Visiting Program. The work at the program has directly impacted the health and safety of our patients and our community. We look forward to continuing to partner with NewboRN Home visiting Program.

Sincerely Mother Baby Unit UF Health.

UF Health is a collaboration of the University of Florida Health Science Center, Shands hospitals and other health care entities.



UF Health Shands Patient & Family Resources 1600 SW Archer Road P.O. Box 100306 Gainesville, FL 32610-0178 Phone: 352-265-0224 UFHealth.org

9/6/23

Dear Children's Trust of Alachua County,

It is my pleasure write a letter in support of the Newborn Home Visiting Program. This program is an asset to the families that I serve at UF Shands Hospital. Moms'/families have shared their appreciation of having someone follow up with them post discharge. This program not only provide services regarding infant care and safety, but also offer emotional and health services to the mom. Having someone come following discharge is support to the family's transition home and validation that they are on the right track with the care and safety of their new baby/babies. Once a need is identified, the Newborn Home Visiting program offers vital support with linking families to other needed services and resources.

I fully support the services and resources that the Home Visiting Program offers. I ask for your continued support of this resource. My only concern and questionswhen can this program be offered in other counties?

Sincerely,

40 and

Gwendolyn Robinson LCSW Neonatal Intensive Care Unit

Patient Care = Research = Education

In Kenth ten odishowstan of the University of Florida Health Science Center. Shands housitals and other health care entities.



09/12/2023 UF Health Shands Patient & Family Resources 1600 SW Archer Road P.O. Box 100306 Gainesville, FL 32610-0178 Phone: 352-265-0224 UFHealth.org

Dear Children's Trust of Alachua County,

Hello, I would like to introduce myself. My name is Emily Rant. I am a Neonatal Intensive Care Unit Social Worker (NICU) at UF Health Shands Hospital in Gainesville, Florida. As with most of our patient population, the families of NICU babies are experiencing major life events. To start off with childbirth is a major life event! From my observation one of the dynamics that makes the NICU stay difficult is that most of the patients are premature. Not having time to prepare adequately for the arrival of a baby can cause a huge financial, and emotional strain on parents. When the baby is in the NICU the medical team has eyes on the family and the infant. As you can imagine when a baby is discharged parents and the medical team are nervous about the transition home. Unfortunately, we do not get to visit these families at home to continue with support.

I am writing this letter to make you aware that the Newborn Home Visiting Program is an asset to our community. The Newborn Home Visiting Program helps support families with pack-n-plays, diapers (small supply), and other helpful items for moms. I know you may ask how a few diapers or a pack-n-play help. I promise you that providing items makes way more of a difference than you may know. Most recently I had a mother who was undocumented deliver

Patient Care = Research = Education

UF Health is a collaboration of the University of Florida Health Science Center, Shands haspitale and other health care entities.



09/12/2023 UF Health Shands Patient & Family Resources 1600 SW Archer Road P.O. Box 100306 Gainesville, FL 32610-0178 Phone: 352-265-0224 UFHealth.org

very early and when I tell you she had access to "nothing" that is no lie. I had no idea how I would start this mom off with essential items needed for a safe discharge. I wound up reaching out to the Newborn Home Visiting Program. Now obviously giving the family essential items for the baby is a help but also knowing that there will be eyes in the home is a huge comfort. When nurses are in the home they are able to offer support, recognize red flags, and provide solutions to challenges a family may face. I absolutely am grateful for this service and everything the program has to offer. This is a wonderful program and we could use a lot more of it!

Thank you MA Emily Rant. MSW, LCSW.

Eran0001@shands.ufl.edu

(352) 265-6207.

Muchelle Banfield, MSD Drawn Bichman usw in Neumans, MSW Patient Care = Research = Education R White the collection of the University of Florido Health Science Center, Shanda haspitals and other health care entities, r Queda, MSW



UF Health Shands Patient & Family Resources 1600 SW Archer Road P.O. Box 100306 Gainesville, FL 32610-0178 Phone: 352-265-0224 UFHealth.org

Children's Trust of Alachua County 802 NW 5th Ave, Suite 100 Gainesville, FL 32601

To Whom It May Concern,

As a Social Worker with UFHealth Children's Hospital, I wholeheartedly endorse The NewboRN Home Visiting Program. Welcoming a new baby is a joyous time for parents, but it can also be stressful, especially in the first few months. The program offers evidence-based and invaluable services to parents and infants, helping the whole family.

I work with perinatal services and have seen firsthand that certain factors like premature birth, inadequate housing, financial instability, and limited health literacy can exacerbate anxiety levels for parents. Thankfully, The NewboRN Home Visiting Program provides parents with vital support and guidance to navigate the complexities of early parenthood and ensure their newborns receive the best possible care.

I have witnessed many of my patients benefit from the services offered by this program. It is crucial to continue supporting it as it benefits the most vulnerable citizens of Alachua County - our newest and youngest members of society.

Respectfully,

Katie Zeile

Katie Zeile, MSW Registered Clinical Social Worker Intern University of Florida Health (p) 352.265.6318 (f) 352.733.1265 Kzei0002@shands.ufl.edu

Patient Care • Research • Education

UF Health is a collaboration of the University of Florida Health Science Center, Shands hospitals and other health care entities.



September 7th 2023

Children's Trust Alachua County Board Members,

This is a letter of support for the NewboRN Home Visiting program in Alachua County. HCA Florida North Florida Hospital has been a partner with the NewboRN program for several years and we have been so thankful for the partnership. Having a NewboRN Family partner located inside our hospital to speak directly to our patients to inform them of this wonderful resource available to them. The Family Partner has assisted our nursing staff with questions on how to make referrals beyond the Newborn program and has been instrumental in even helping patients get connected to resources through the Connect program. The NewboRN nursing team has been wonderful to our patients and the Family Partner has shared the many stories of success they have had with families.

We thank you for allowing us to continue to partner with the NewboRN Home Visiting program and we look forward to partnership for years to come.

Sincerely,

Sandy

Sandy Clayton Administrative Coordinator Women's and Children's Services HCA Florida North Florida Hospital 6500 W Newberry Road, Gainesville, Florida, 32605 P 352,333,4596 | M 352,420,3210

6500 West Newberry Road Gainesville, Florida 32607 HCAhealthcare.com All About Women obstetrics and gynecology

Anthony B. Agrios, M.D. Joseph S. lobst, M.D. Jean C. Cook, M.D. Allison Falkenstrom, M.D. Shelley Russell, APRN, CNM Kristen Cook, APRN, CNM Cynthia Vista, APRN, CNM Katie Camargo, APRN, CNM Ronnie Jo Stringer, APRN, CNM

Gainesville: 6440 West Newberry Road Suite 111 Gainesville, Florida 32605 352.331.332 Tel 352.331.3320 Fax

Lake City: 4447 NW American Lane Lake City, Florida 32055 386.754.1744

AllAboutWomenMD.com

September 11, 2023

To Whom It May Concern:

This is a letter of support for our Newborn Home Visiting program. The Newborn program is such a wonderful program, and we provide so many wonderful services for new Moms in our community our medical providers do support the program.

Newborn also offers CPR classes provided by nurses. The nurses go above and beyond to make sure moms know about the resources available to them in the community such as: making sure mom and baby are successful with breastfeeding, baby has a safe sleep environment, newborn care provided for both parents and well checks for mom and baby. Nurses are equipped with pack n plays, diapers (small supply), and other goodies to help mom if needed.

Cordially,

Retae Taulial in

ReNae Gavlick, LPN Nurse Manager



Dear Childrens Trust of Alachua County:

I am writing to express my full support of the Newborn Home Visiting Program of Alachua County. I firmly believe in the program's ability to make a positive difference in our community. Its goal to provide vital resources to mothers is essential in promoting the health and well-being of both mother and baby.

Thank you for taking the time to consider my message.

Best regards,

ane F Hout

Jane Houston, DNP, CNM Associate Professor of Obstetrics and Gynecology HCA/UCF Consortium Gainesville



Dear Childrens Trust of Alachua County:

I am writing to express my full support of the Newborn Home Visiting Program of Alachua County. I firmly believe in the program's ability to make a positive difference in our community. Its goal to provide vital resources to mothers is essential in promoting the health and well-being of both mother and baby.

Thank you for taking the time to consider my message.

Best regards,

ARN

April Weldon, RN Women's Group of North Florida



Dear Childrens Trust of Alachua County:

I am writing to express my full support of the Newborn Home Visiting Program of Alachua County. I firmly believe in the program's ability to make a positive difference in our community. Its goal to provide vital resources to mothers is essential in promoting the health and well-being of both mother and baby.

Thank you for taking the time to consider my message.

Best regards, Dr. Bus, LPN

LaDonna Banks, LPN Women's Group of North Florida



Dear Childrens Trust of Alachua County:

I am writing to express my full support of the Newborn Home Visiting Program of Alachua County. I firmly believe in the program's ability to make a positive difference in our community. Its goal to provide vital resources to mothers is essential in promoting the health and well-being of both mother and baby.

Thank you for taking the time to consider my message.

Best regards,

Philman, LPN

Lisa Philman, LPN Women's Group of North Florida



Dear Childrens Trust of Alachua County:

I am writing to express my full support of the Newborn Home Visiting Program of Alachua County. I firmly believe in the program's ability to make a positive difference in our community. Its goal to provide vital resources to mothers is essential in promoting the health and well-being of both mother and baby.

Thank you for taking the time to consider my message.

Best regards,

Jeather Dairy RN

Heather Swayze, RN Women's Group of North Florida



Dear Childrens Trust of Alachua County:

I am writing to express my full support of the Newborn Home Visiting Program of Alachua County. I firmly believe in the program's ability to make a positive difference in our community. Its goal to provide vital resources to mothers is essential in promoting the health and well-being of both mother and baby.

Thank you for taking the time to consider my message.

Best regards,

Hannah Bryant, RN

Women's Group of North Florida



Dear Childrens Trust of Alachua County:

I am writing to express my full support of the Newborn Home Visiting Program of Alachua County. I firmly believe in the program's ability to make a positive difference in our community. Its goal to provide vital resources to mothers is essential in promoting the health and well-being of both mother and baby.

Thank you for taking the time to consider my message.

Best regards,

Abigail Wood, CNM, APRN, CLC Associate Professor of Obstetrics and Gynecology HCA/UCF Consortium Gainesville



Dear Childrens Trust of Alachua County:

I am writing to express my full support of the Newborn Home Visiting Program of Alachua County. I firmly believe in the program's ability to make a positive difference in our community. Its goal to provide vital resources to mothers is essential in promoting the health and well-being of both mother and baby.

Thank you for taking the time to consider my message.

Best regards,

RN

Amber Paxton Clinical Supervisor Women's Group of North Florida



Dear Childrens Trust of Alachua County:

I am writing to express my full support of the Newborn Home Visiting Program of Alachua County. I firmly believe in the program's ability to make a positive difference in our community. Its goal to provide vital resources to mothers is essential in promoting the health and well-being of both mother and baby.

Thank you for taking the time to consider my message.

Best regards,

lepp, cNM. APR

Christina Bennett Wiley, MSN, CNM, APRN Associate Professor of Obstetrics and Gynecology HCA/UCF Consortium Gainesville



Dear Childrens Trust of Alachua County:

I am writing to express my full support of the Newborn Home Visiting Program of Alachua County. I firmly believe in the program's ability to make a positive difference in our community. Its goal to provide vital resources to mothers is essential in promoting the health and well-being of both mother and baby.

Thank you for taking the time to consider my message.

Best regards,

27mpl

Ronda Petersen, MA Women's Group of North Florida



Dear Childrens Trust of Alachua County:

I am writing to express my full support of the Newborn Home Visiting Program of Alachua County. I firmly believe in the program's ability to make a positive difference in our community. Its goal to provide vital resources to mothers is essential in promoting the health and well-being of both mother and baby.

Thank you for taking the time to consider my message.

Best regards,

Bernardo RN

Jessica Bernardo, RN Women's Group of North Florida



Dear Childrens Trust of Alachua County:

I am writing to express my full support of the Newborn Home Visiting Program of Alachua County. I firmly believe in the program's ability to make a positive difference in our community. Its goal to provide vital resources to mothers is essential in promoting the health and well-being of both mother and baby.

Thank you for taking the time to consider my message.

Best regards,

9

Erich Wyckoff, MD, FACOG / Minimally Invasive Obstetrics and Gynecology HCA/UCF Consortium Gainesville Director of Robotic Surgery WGNF



Dear Childrens Trust of Alachua County:

I am writing to express my full support of the Newborn Home Visiting Program of Alachua County. I firmly believe in the program's ability to make a positive difference in our community. Its goal to provide vital resources to mothers is essential in promoting the health and well-being of both mother and baby.

Thank you for taking the time to consider my message.

Best regards,

Mohamed Foda, MD, FACOG Associate Professor of Obstetrics and Gynecology HCA/UCF Consortium Gainesville

1/



Dear Childrens Trust of Alachua County:

I am writing to express my full support of the Newborn Home Visiting Program of Alachua County. I firmly believe in the program's ability to make a positive difference in our community. Its goal to provide vital resources to mothers is essential in promoting the health and well-being of both mother and baby.

Thank you for taking the time to consider my message.

Best regards,

and Steen Ins

David Stewart, MD Associate Professor of Obstetrics and Gynecology HCA/UCF Consortium Gainesville